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The dircetors present the sirategic repori, their reporl and the audited Mnancial statements for the yvear ended
31 December 2021,

STRATEGIC REPFORT

Principal activitics

The company is engaged in the production and selling of petroleum products. It also provides services to
other group undertakings within the bp group and holds investments in subsidiary undertakings engaged in
similar activities,

Asat 31 December 2021, the company holds the below interests in the following North Sea fields, in the UK
continental shell

Field Name Operaied by Interest held (%)
Arundel BP 20.00
Clair Bl 17.4%
Clair Ridge Bl 17.48
Don ME BI 80.20
Don 8% BPR 58.33
Foinaven Main Field Br 40.00
Foinaven Tast LP 1.00
Viking & VTS Neon-BP 50,00
Wallyrie Non-BP 25.00
Yixen MNon-BP 50,00
Culwcan Non-BI? 32 .00
[deverom MNom-BI1? 1.0
Thistle Nenm-BP 8l1.72

Main producing felds arc Arundel, Clar, Clair Ridge and Culzean.

Thistle interest held moved from 1% to 81.72% on 25" March 2021. On this date Thistle equities were re-
transferred fiom Enquest to bp. This was triggered by the field moving into decommissioning phase, and is
tue to bp having 81.72% ol the decommissioning liability, Harbour Energy ple have 18.28% of remaining
decommissioning liability and Enquest have zera but continue to be operator.
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On 15 April 2021 bp announced it suspended production from the Foimaven fields, located west of Shetland,
as it began preparations to remove the Petrojar] Foinaven floating production, storage and offloading (FPSC)
vessel from operation. The FPS0, which has been in the Foinaven area since 1996, was approaching the end
of its 25-year design life. Work had been under way to consider options to extend the life of the vessel, but
due to its age and demanding environment, it was determined that 1t was not economically viable to repair
and continue to use the existing FPSO to recover the fields’ remaining resources and all the assets of the
Foinaven fields CGU were written down to zero during 2021. In the next 12 months the main focus will be
decommissioning of the FPSQ safely and timely and deciding on whether to redevelop the field or
decommission the reserves, wells and infrastructure. bp disconnected and sailed the FPSO away from the
Foinaven field in August 2022 and handed back the vessel to owners Teekay Corporation during 3Q 2022,

Results and review of the business

The profit for the year after taxation was $430,481,000 which, when added to the retained profit brought
forward at 1 January 2021 of $1,727,861,000 and atter deducting total paid interim and final dividends to
ordinary sharcholders of $178,000,000, gives a total retained profit carried forward at 31 December 2021 of
$1,980,342,000.

The key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows:

2021 2020 Variance

B000 000 Yo
Turnaver 1,502,891 445 459 237
Operating profit / (loss) 655,191 (755,911) {187
Profit / (loss) for the year 430,481 (367,453 217
Tatal equity 4,503,349 4,251,089 G

2021 2020 Variance

W %o

Quick ratio® 266 341 (75)
Return on average capital employed* 13.28 (9.74) 23.02
Gross profit percentage*** 42 (107) 149

*(Quick ratio is defined as current assets (excluding stocks, debtors falling due after one year, derivatives and
other financial instruments falling due after one year and deferred tax assets) divided by current liabilities,

#* Retum on average capital employed is defined as profit for the year after adding back interest, divided by
average capital employed. Capital employed is defined as total equity plus gross debt, excluding goodwill
and cagh,

#42 Gross profit pereentage is defined as gross profit divided by tormover,

Turnover has increased by 51,057, 432,000 in 2021 mainly due lo an increase of $743,144,000 in gas and
$308,374,000 in oil & NGL (natural gas liquid) revenue as per the increased production in Clair, Clair Ridge
and Culzean fields and increase in other operating revenue in amount of $6,034,000. This has been partially
offset by the $120,000 decrease. in tariff income.

Increase in gas revenue from $160,745,000 in 2020 to $903,888,000 in 2021 was mainly driven by the
increase in the average gas realized price year on year from 53,105/ mmsct (2020) to 516,607/mmscf (2021)
resulting in an increase of $734,898,000. There is a slight growth in production from 51,773 mmscf to
54,429 mmscf in the respective years resulting in an increase of $8,246,000,

The oil production increased by $15,295,000 compared to previous year (from 7.2 mmbaoe to 7.7 mmboe in
the respective years) and there was a significant increase in average oil realised price, from $35.82/bbl
(20200 to $71.08/bbl (2021), resulting in an increase in revenue of $270,553,000,
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The mai drivers of the NGL (natural gas liquid) revenue increase by $22,526,000 were increase of the
average NGL realized price from 530367 4mme in 2020 to $615.43/tonne in 2021,

The company generated an operating profic of $655,191,000 in 2021 compared to $755,911,000 loss in the
previous year, Primary drivers of this change are the followings: small decrease in cost of sales in amount of
$45,881,000; decrease in the impairment charge recognized for fixed assel investments of $523,884,000:
increase in turnover in amount of $1,057,432,000 deseribed above; decrease in impairment of tangible assets
of $327,840,000; increase in other operating income in amount of $24,817,000; increase in profit/loss on
disposal of fixed assets in amount of 528, 140,000; offset by dividend income from Amoco (LK)
Haploration Limited in 2020 amounting to $600,000,000 (Nil in 2021 and $3,000,000 due to other factors.

Besides the increase in tumover the other key driver which twmed the operating loss to profit was the
sigmificantly lower impairment charge on fixed asset investment in 2021 as in 2020 there was a significant
decrease of net assets of Amoco (U.K.) Hxploration Limited resulicd in oan impairment charge of
FAIARIT 000 (2021 impairment charge: $9,953,000). In addition a tangible asset impairment reversal was
recognized of $3,374,000 in 2021 compared to $324 466,000 charge in 2020 mostly driven by betler long-
term oil and gas price assumplions,

During the vear, bp's price assumptions applicd in value in use impairment lesting for Brent oil up o 2030
were inereased Lo reflect near-term supply constraints. bp’s management also expects an acceleration of the
pace of trangition to a lower carbon economy, As such, the long-term Brent o1l assumptions were decreased
turing the year, reaching $55 per barrel by 2040 and 545 per barrel by 2050 (in 2020 real terms). The price
assumptions applied in value in use impairment test for Henry Hub gas were unchanged o those used in
2020 excepl that the assumption for 2022 was increased to retlect short term market condition. This
friggered impairment reversal in Amndel, Culzean and Don. In 2021 following the suspension of production
from the Foinaven lelds impairment charae was recognized,

The tax charge for the year is 5204924000, Thiz represenis an inercased to the prior year eredit of
BA19,004.0000, and is dug 1o @ reduction in the current tax charge of $4,270,000 and an increase to
the deferred tax charge of 3628, 198,000,

The increase in the deferred tax liability of $204,924,000 arises mainly as a consequence of an increase in
the deferred tax liability recognised on tax losses carried lorward,

The decrease of quick ratio was mainly attributable to increase in short term decommissioning provision.

Increase of relum on averapge capital employed was mainly attributable that the entity has profit in current
year comparing the loss in prior year.

The increase of gross profit was due W increase in turnover described abowve,
Section 172 (1) statement

This section of the Strategic Repaort describes how the dircctors have had regard to the matters el out in

section 17201} {a) o (N, and forms the statement required under section 414CZA of the Companies Act 2006
(the “Act™).

During the course of the year the following primary tasks were undertaken by the Board in line with the
principal activities of the company:

= Defining and establishing purpose and strategy including, where relevant, having regard to the
purpose, strategy, culture and values defined by BP p.lc.

*  Manitoring the polential challenges presented by the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, having regard to
the company's safe and reliable operations,

= Assessing principal and emerging risks relevant to the company.
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The table below demonstrates how the Board has discharged their duties under section 172(1):

Scction 172(1)

Overview of performance against section 172(1)

a. The likely long-term
consequences of the
decision

When setting and delivering on the company’s strategy, the directors have
regard to the evolving environment in which the company operates and aims
to promote the long term success and sustained economic viability of the
company.

b. The interests of the

company's employees

The company has no employees.

c. The need to foster the
company's business
relationships with

others

suppliers, customers and

During 2021, the directors reiterated their focus on engagement and fostering
relationships with key stakeholders, as well as an increased focus on
environment, social and governance (“ESG™) matters.

In addition, the Board reviewed and considered the company’™s Modern
Slavery Statement and disclosed its practices in respect of the sume on an
annual basis.

Furthermore, the Board reviewed and considered the company's prompt
payment reporting performance and disclosed ils practices in respect of the
same on a bi-annual basis,

d. The impact of the
company’s operations

the envirpnmenl

on the community and

The directors are committed to bp’s group wide policies and aims which
protect the community, environmenl and its people,

g. The desirability to

reputation for high
standards of business
conduct

maintain the company's

In 2021 bp continued to operate under its sustainability frame launched in
2020, with aims and objectives linked to the UN Sustainable Development
Goals. bp's values of safety, respect, excellence, courage and one team define
how the bp group, including the company and ils Board, conduct business.
Furthermore, bp's code of conduct 1s based upon its values and 1t sets clear
expectations for how bp, the company and the Board operate. The directors of
the company continued to adhere, in good faith, to the bp code of conduet
during the year to ensure the Board and the company maintain a reputation for
high standards of business conduct.

bp's code of conduct includes prohibitions on engaging in bribery or
corruption in any form, in accordance with bp's group-wide anti-bribery and
corruption policy and procedures. During the year, bp continued to engage
suppliers and communicate expectations for managing bribery and corruption
risk om behalf of bp, where relevant,

f. The need to act fairly

COMmpany

between members of the

The directors aim to balance the needs of various stakeholders when setting
and delivering the company’s strategy, having repard to long term wvalue
creation, ncluding maximising long term sharcholder value.

Further information on the bp group policies applicable to the company can be found in BP p.le.’s 2021
Annual Report and Form 20-F and the bp Sustainability Report 2021,

Stakeholder engagement

For further details on how the company has engaged with stakeholders, fostered relationships with them and
how this has impacted decision making, please refer to the Engagement with Stakeholders Statement found

in the Directors’ Report.
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The company”s principal decisions

T

The company and the bp group have taken the view that a “principal’ decision is one which is material and
strategic in namre and would affect the ability of the company to generate or preserve value over the long

Lerim.

During the period, the following principal decizsions were taken by the company whilst having regard to the

company’s stakcholders and other relevant Haclors;

Principal decision

The relevant lactors taken into account during the
decision making process

During the year, the divectors comsidered, approved
and paid a dividend as appropriate to the shareholder.

The directors considered the impact of such a
decizion on the long-term prospects of the company,
as well as considering the financial position of the
cormpany W engure that it had sulMicient distributable
reserves at the time of the dividend.

The directors congidered and approved the
refinancing of US §1bn of the company’s short-term
deposit held with another group company onto a long-

The directars comsidered the impacet of the refinancing
on the long-term prospects and the financial position
of the company.

lerm deposit agrecment with an inereased limit,

Principal risks and uncertainties

The company aims to deliver sustainable value by identilying and responding successfully to risks. Risk
management is integrated into the process of planning and performance management tor the bp group.

The risks Hsted below, separalely or in combination, could have a material adverse offeelt on Lhe
implementation of the company’s strategy, business, financial performance, results of operations, cash flows,
liguidity, prospects, shareholder value and retumng and reputation, Linless stated otherwise, further details on
these risks are included within the risl factors in the strategic report of the bp group Annual Report and
Form 20-1° for the year ended 31 December 20217,

Strategic and commercial risks

Prices and markets

The company’s financial performance is subject 1o [luctuating prices of oil, gas, technological change,
exchange rate Muetuations and the peners] macroeconomic outlook. Oil, s and produet prices are subject o
international supply and demand and margins can be volatile. Political developments, increased supply of oil
and pas or allernative low carbon eneray sources, technolosical change, global ceonomic conditions, public
health situations (including the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic or any future epidemic or
pandemic) and the influence of OPEC can impact supply and demand and prices for our products,

Aceessing and progressing hydrocarbon resouvces and low carbon opportunities

The company’s inability to access, renew and progress upstream resources in 4 timely manmer could impact
itg future preduction and financial performance. Furthermore, the company’s inability to access low carbon
opportunities and the commercial terms associated with those opportunities could impact its financial
performance,

Muajor praject delivery
Poor investment choice, efficiency or delivery, or operational challenges at any major project that underpins
production or production growth, could adversely afTect our financial performance.

Geopolitical

The company is exposed to a range of political, economic and social developments and comsequent changes
Lo the operating and regulatory environment which could cause business disruption. Political instability,
changes to the regulatory environment or taxation, international trade disputes and barriers to free trade,
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International sanctiens, expropriation or nationalization of property, civil strife, sirikes, insurrections, acts of
lerrorism, acts of war and public health situations (including the continued impact of the COVID-19
pandemic or any future epidemic or pandemic) may disrupt or curtail our operations, business activities or
investments. These may in turn cause production 1o decline, limit our ability o pursue new opportunilies,
affect the recoverability of our assets and our related earnings and cash flow or cause us to incur additional
costs, particularly due to the long-term nature of many of our projects and significant capital expendimure
required.

Liguidity, financial capacity and financial, including credit, exposure
Failure to work within the financial framework set by the bp group could impact the company’s ability to
operate and result in financial loss,

Joint arrangements and contractors

The company may have varying levels of confrol over the standards, operations and compliance of its
partners, contractors and sub-contractors which could result in legal liability and reputational damage.

Digital infrastriecture and cybersecurity
Breach or failure of the company’s or third parties” digital infrastructure or cyber securily, including loss or
misuse of sensitive information could damage its operations and reputation or increase costs.

Current geopolitical factors have increased these risks,

Climgate change and the transition to a lower carbon economy

Developments in policy, law, regulation, technology and markets including societal and investor sentiment,
related to the issue of climate change could increase costs, constrain the company's operations and affect our
business plans and lnancial performance.

Competition

Inability to remain efficient, maintain a high-quality portfolio of assets, innovate and retain access to an
appropriately skilled workforce (who may be employed by another bp group company), could negatively
impact delivery of the company's strategy in a highly competitive market.

Crisis management and business continuity

Potential disruption to the company’s business and operations could occur if it does not address an incident
effectively.

Insurance
The bp group’s insurance strategy could expose the bp group to material uninsured losses which in tum
could adversely affect the company.

Safety and operational risks

Process safety, personal safety and environmenial risks

The company is exposed 10 a wide range of health, safety, sccurity and environmental risks that could cause
harm to people, the environment, the company’s assets and result in regulatory action, legal liability,
business intercuption, increased costs, damage to its reputation and potentially denial of its licence o
operate,

Driffing and production
Challenging operational environments and other uncertainties could impact drilling and production activities.

Security
Hostile acls against the company’s staff and activities could cause harm to people and disrupt its operations.
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Product guality
Supplying customers with off-specification products could damage the company’s reputation, lead Lo
regulatory action and legal liability, and potentially impact its financial performance.

Compliance and control risks

Ethical misconduct and non-compliance
Ethical misconduct or breaches of applicable laws by the company’s businesses or its employees could be
damaging Lo ils reputation, and could resull in Hbgation, regulatory action and penaltics,

Regulation

Changes in the law and regulation could increase costs, constrain the company's operations and affect its
business plans and financial performance.

Treasury and freasury irading activities
Ineflfective oversighl of treasury and lrading sctivities could lead o business disruption, linancial loss,
regulatory intervention or damage to the company’s reputation,

Reporfing
Failure to accurately report the company's data could lead to regulatory action, legal liability and
repulational damagze.

Finaneial risk manapement

The company s exposed o a number of diMerent Gnancial rsks arigsing Mrom natural business éxposures ag
well as its use of financial instruments including market risks relating to commodity prices, foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates; and credit visk, Further details on these financial risks are included within
Note 28 of the bp jroup Anmual Report and Form 20-F for the year ended 31 December 2021,

Authonzed lor issue on .behzalf of the Board

karun Madonman.

K Maclennan
Dieector

September 30, 2022

Registered Office:

1 Wellheads Avenue
Dyee

Aberdeen

ABZT TPH

United Kingdom
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BRITOIL LIMITED

Directors
The present directors are listed on page 1.

K Maclennan, I} F Reiter, G R Gordon and 1 C Emembolu served as directors throughout the financial year,
Changes since | January 2021 are as [ollows:

Appointed EResigned
P I Mather — 23 September 2021
I C Emembolu 7 February 2022
] 3 Burion 17 February 2022 —
I. A Kingham 23 September 2021 -

Directors' indemnity

The company indemnifies the directors in its Articles of Association to the extent allowed under section 232
of the Companies Act 2006, Such qualifying third party indemmnity provisions for the benefit of the
company's directors remain in force at the date of this report,

Dividends

During the year the company has declared and paid dividends o $178,000,000 (2020 $0). The directors do
not propose the payment of a final dividend (2020 $0).

Financial instruments

In accordance with section 414C of the Companies Act 2006 the directors have included information
regarding financial instruments as required by Schedule 7 (Part 6.1) of the Large and Medium-gized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 in the strategic report under Financial risk
management,

Post balance sheel event

On 14 December 2021 bp announced its intention to acquire Rockrose's 28% shares in Foinaven and 47%
share in East Foinaven fields. The deal was completed on 1 April 2022 and as a result bp increased its share
to 100% in Foinaven and 90% in East Foinaven fields. Since the transaction arose only subsequent to 31
December 2021, it will be reflected in the financial statements of Britoil Limited for the year ending 31
December 2022, '

Going concern

The directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements. The current economic and geopolitical environment, as well as the ongoing impact of
COVID 19 were considered as part of the going concern assessment,

Liquidity and financing is managed within the bp group under pooled group-wide arrangements which
include the company, As part of the going concern basis of preparation for the company, the ability and
intent of the bp group to support the company has also been taken into consideration. The most recent bp
group financial stalements conlinue Lo be prepared on & going concern basis. Forecast liquidity of the bp
group has been assessed under a number of stressed scenarios, including a significant decline in oil prices
over the 12-month period from the date these financial statements were approved. Reverse stress tests
performed indicated that the bp group will continue to operate as a going concern for at least 12 months [rom
the date of approval of the financial statements even if the Brent price fell to zero, In addition, bp group
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management have confirmed the existing intra~group funding and Hguidily amangements as currently
conglituted are expected to be maintained for the foresesable Tuture, being no less than twelve months from
the approval of these financial statements, No material uncertainties over going concern or significant
Judgements or eslimales on Lhe assessment were identified.  Accordingly, the company will be able to draw
o supporl from the bp group for the toreseeable future and these fAnancial statements have therefore been
prepared on a going concern hasis. For further information on financial risk factors, including credit risk and
liquidity risk, sce pages 5-6,

As noted in the Strategic Report, the company holds interests in a number of producing fields in the UK
continental shell, as 4 resuli the company’s cash Nows are mpacted by changes in the commodity price,
There is no significant exploration or development spend planned on those fields during the going concern
periced, The company does not hold cash directly and funding requirements are met through the central
Treasury organisation, as a result the company is reliant on the overall group funding to confinue in
operation and meet itz liabilities as they fall due in the poing concern period. ‘The total debit balance of the
internal finance accounts (IFA) in the company as at 31 December 2021 is $439,214,000 fimded by BP
International Limited. The company has only intercompany trading within the bp group and alzo has net
assels position of 54,503,349.000 and net current assets of $2,380,557,004,

I assessing the prospects of  Britedl Limited, the directors noted that such assessment is subject to a degree
of uncertainly that can be expected to increase looking out over time and, accordingly, that future outcomes
cannot be guarantead or predicted with certainty.

Having a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence (or ul least the next 12 months from the date these fnancial statements were approved, the
directors consider it appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

Future developments

The directors aim to maintain the management policies which have resulted in the company’'s stability in
recent years. They belicve that the company 15 in g good position o lake advantage of any opporlunitics
which may arise in the future.

1t 15 the intention of the directors that the business of the company will continue for the foresseable future.

Hesearch and development

Research and development costs relate fo the company’s share of group led research and development
programmes and initiatives. The cost of these group projects are absorbed by the fields and locations and
therefore the legal entities which are expected to benetit from those developments are in the future,

Stakeholder slatements

Enpagemenl with olher slakeholders

The Board recognises the mmportimes of considering and having regard o key stakcholders and their
interests when making decisions. By thoroughly understanding the company's key stakeholder groups, the
Board can successfully consider and address the needs of these staleholders and foster good business
relationships with them, The company considers its governments, sharcholders, customers, supplicrs and
communitics within the countries it operates,

The Board are commilted to doing business ethically and transparently, using bp's values and code of
conduct to guide them when engaging and working with business partners. The company’s activities, and the
decisions of ils Board, alTeel 2 wide varety of individuals and organisations. The Boand engages with ity
stakeholders, listening to their differing needs and prioritics as an everyday part of business, and utilising the
feedback received Lo inform Lthe Board's decision-making,
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As noted in the section 172(1) statement within the Strategic Report, responsibility for decisions that impact
the entire bp group are taken by the Board of BP p.l.c. On behalf of the company, the bp group is a member
of industry associations that offer opportunities to share good practices and collaborate on issues of
importance Additionally, the bp group works with governments on a range of issues that are relevant to its
business, from regulatory compliance and understanding tax liabilities, to collaborating on community

initiatives,

Regularly engaging with stakeholders is a priority for the company and the below table describes how the
Board had regard to the need to foster relationships with the company’s key stakeholders, how outeomes
were considered and how concerns were jdentified and addressed during the reporting period. Further
details of these decisions, and if applicable any principal decisions in relation to the stakeholders, are
discussed in the section 172{1) statement;

to the suppliers in order
to improve suppliers’

systems  and  avoid
delects and/or
operational issues

where feasible.
To be part of a fair and

respectful  tender and
supplier selection
Pricess.

To be part of a valued
supplier  relationship
centred  around  ethics
and transparency.

work is  being carried  out,
ensuring  that 11 meets  the
suppliers’ and the bp group’s
expeclalions.

Stakeholders |Stakeholders” How  we  have  fostered|How  the  fostering  of
interests relationships relationships impacted
decision making
Suppliers For the company to|The company maintains a number|Management  andfor, where
understand, and where|of bp oroup wide policies to|significant, the Board are
feasible, meet  the|ensure fair treatment of its current | provided with updates on
suppliers” needs and|and potential suppliers. renewals and negotiations for
expectations. The bp group also conducts|existing and/or new supplier
For the company to|supplier site wisits to  build{agreements. The information
provide regular support | relationships and monitor how |received  supports  effective

decision making by the Board
when considering the long term
consequences on relationships
with suppliers.

On an exceptional basis, the
directors  will  engage  with
suppliers through means of the
procurement teams in the case
of any escalation.

bp's supplier site visils are

intended tw  be mutually
beneficial in  terms  of
improvement  and  learning
opportunities,

10
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Customers

For the company 1o
provide its customers
with top quatlity
services,

For ‘the company to
build i trusied
relationship  with  its
customers.

Ensuring  the  safe
execution of products
and services provided
Lo ity customers  and
that  any claims  in
relation to the same, are
addressed and resolved,
Linsuring that customer
data is kept In a secure
environment and only
for the duration and
purposes that the data is
required for,

The company maintains a namber
of bp group wide policies to
ensure the ongoing  sccurity of
customer data, safe execution and
anl
services and a continued trusted

quality of the products

relationship with its customers.

On behalf of the company, the bp
aroup also secks o engage with
customers through forums such
as social media, focus bp groups
with
customers to  better understand
customer’s needs and seek their

and in-depth interviews

lecdback,

Management andfor, where
significant, the Board are
provided with updates on
renewals and negotiations for
existing andior new  customer
contracts.  The  information
received supports  effective
decision making by the Board
when considering the long term
consequences on relationships
with ils cuslomers,

By obtaining custamer
feedback and understanding cur
customers, it hay allowed us o
clarify the company's vision for
future growth and ways to
continually add brand valoe.

Il
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Community
and
environment

The directors’
relationships on behalf
of the company with
Tespect to communities
are important for all its
activities, but
particularly for major
new projects where its
presence may bring
about changes in the
local areas, such as jobs

and suppott for
community

development, changes
in the physical

landscape, changes to
the local ecosystem.

For the company to
manufacture and
deliver high quality
products and services in
an energy efficient and
environmentally
responsible manner,

To conduct business in
4 manoer Lo minimise
negative impact on the
surrounding area and be

respectiul and
conscientious of the
environment! the

financial environment.
To take inlo account the

interest of the loeal
community when
considering future
investinents and

business decisions.

The company maintains a number
of bp group wide policies to
promaote sustainable and
environmentally friendly business
and operational praclises,

The directors engage with local
communities  through  public
consultations and meetings with
local representatives and
complete  impact  assessments
where relevant. The directors also
consult with NGOs, academics
and mdustry associations,
drawing on  their external
gxpertise, input and challenge.

Managemenl andfor, where
significant, the Board arc
provided with updates on the
environmental impact ol the
company's business operations.

The  information  received
supports  effective  decision
making by the Board when
considering  the long  term
CONSEqUENTCES on the
environment and local
communities,

By following and implementing
the bp group wide sustainability
policy, the company has been
able to measure and manage its
impact on the community and
environment i1 which it
operates,
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DIRECTORS' REFORT

Sharcholder |The company is 100%|bp group funclions, across Tax |One of the company’s strategic
owned by BP|Trcasury and  Finance, inaims is to pursue siralegic
Exploration  Operating | conjunction with semior| growlh o maximise long term
Company Limited. The|management, ; malke | value for its shareholder.
company i% committed [recommendations  to declare|The company’s  compliance
to  maximising long|dividends, where relevani, via a|with the bp group’s System of
term shareholder value,|thoroush  leasibility  analysis|loternal Control  assists  the
m whatever form, when|process as part of its System of|Board when congidering
taking its decisions. Internal Control, ensuring  the|whether o declare dividends,

appropriate amount of dividend | the amount of dividend and any
and associated impact are duly|associated impaet, Specifically,
considered, the Board will review relevant
The company reporis  to its|internal  functional assurance
sharcholder on a regular basis in|advice notes when considering
the form of s Mnancial|the declaration of a dividend to
stulements and, where applicable, | its shareholder.

its business, strategic plans and

key risks. '

Government! |For the company to|The company keeps the Morth|Management  andfor,  where

Regulators create Sea Transition Authority and the |significant, the Board are
valued relationships | Governmient  informed  of  any|provided  with  wupdates  on
with  the Morth  Sealsignificant  changes  to  the|changes in regulation andfor
Trangition  Authority | company. legislation  impacting  the
and the Government company. The  information
gentred  around  clhics received  supports effective
and transparency, and decizsion making by the Board
discuss relevant when considering the
regulations and company’s  compliance  with
puidance where suid regulations and/or
NeCcessary legislation.

The company  continually
engages with local government
bodics  andfor  regulators  to
ensure it is conducting itself in
accordance with relevant laws’
repulation o ensure its good
standing, tust and respect in
society and longevity.

Streamlined Encrgy & Carbon Reporting (SECR)

As a UK subsidiary of a UK parent company which preparcs a group directors’ report, SECR reporting
details are ineluded in the strategic report of the bp group Annual Report and Form 20-F (o the year ended
3| December 2021,

Corporate Governance Statement

In 2021, the bp group operated under the eorporate governance tframework implemented in 2020 1o more
closely align with bp’s new purpose  reimagining energy for people and our planet — as well as the new
strategy. The framework defines bp's role, to promote the long-term sustainable success of the company,
generating value for its shareholders while having regard to its other stakeholders, the impact ol is
operalions on the communities within which it operates and the enviromment.

The compuny’s ultimate parent, BP ple., applied the UK Comporate Governance Code (the “Cade™)

throughout the year, with the company complymg with bp's Global Subsidiary Corporate Govermnanee Policy
{the “Policy™) where applicable,
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The governance principles of the company arc determined by BP p.l.c. to promote consistency and
standardisation prior to being implemented in its subsidiaries in local jurisdictions. The principles
determined by the bp group define the role and purpose of the Board, its processes and its relationship with
execulive management, sharcholders and other stakeholders, as defined in the BP p.lc. 2021 Annual Report
and Form 20-F. This system is reflected in the governance of the company through the adoption by the
company of}

i. the System of Internal Control, being the holistic set of management systems, organizational
structures, processes, standards and behaviours that are employed to conduct the bp group’s business;

ii. the Policy; and

iii. the bp Cade of Conduct based on bp's values, setting clear expectations for how we work at bp which
applies to all bp employees, including direclors appoimted 1o the company.

System of Infernal Controf

The System of Internal Control processes, which include functional assurance and mtemal bp group
authorities, facilitate effective and efficient operations by enabling the company to respond appropriately to
significant business, operational, financial, compliance and other risks aiding the company in achicving its
objectives and fulfilling its purpose. This includes the safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or loss
and fraud and ensuring liabilities are identified and managed.

Further, the System of Intemal Control helps to ensure the quality of intemal and external reporting, This
requires the maintenance of proper records and processes that generate a flow of timely, relevant and reliable
information from within and outside the organisation. The System of Internal Control helps to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations, in addition to internal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

This System of Internal Control has been especially important during 2021 in light of the challenging macro-
economic environment facing the bp group and the significant operational challenges presented by the
COVID-19 pandemic resulting in global restrictions on the movement of people, This has led 1o the majorily
ol the company’s employees working remotely to safeguard their, and others, wellbeing while maintaining
sate and reliable operations and support of bp’s customers,

The Policy

The Policy is a comprehensive set of rules and recommendations, reflective of best practice governance and
the content of formal corporate governance codes for private companies, and is designed to improve
subsidiary governance:

i. by mitigating legal and reputational risk and preserving the integrity of the bp group’s corporate
structure;

il. to select, train, and assist competent and conflident directors and officers who execute their duties in a
manner that mitigates the risk of breaching legal requirements and fiduciary duties;

iii. to specify which of the bp group’s businesses and functions are accountable for the various aspects of
establishment, adminisiration and corporate povernance of subsidiaries;

iv. to provide a structure through which company objectives can be achieved and monitored; and

v. to support the System of Internal Control and the bp Code of Conduet,

As a result, the company has not considered it necessary to adopt a formal corporate governance code,

The Policy requires any decisions in vespect of the formation and change of entily form, linancing of intra-
group aclivities, transfer of ownership and dissolution to be made pursuant to bp’s System of Internal
Control processes. Monitoring in respect of compliance with the Policy is completed on a regular basis, and
any exceptions to the Policy are considered and agreed by the Board of the company.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Policy sels oul the responsibilities of all directors and officers of each of the bp group’s subsidiaries and
the primary tasks of the Board, including consideration and execution of long-term stralegy, monitoring of
the subsidiary’s performance and ensuring that the principal risks to the subsidiary are identified and that
apprapriale syslems of risk management and control are in place.

The Policy requires directors to:

iv.

attend induction training upon appointment and are recommended to refresh their raining antuwally;

. nol engage in any activity that is, or could reasonably perceived to be, in conflict with the interests of

the company and are further required to act in the best infercsts of the company, which may not
necessarily eoincide with the best interest of the bp group;

ccemsull in advanee of conflicts of duties in order to identify and implement steps 1o aveid or mitigate

such conflicts; and
retain responsibility for the approval of financial stalements.

Decision making rests with the directors of the company and delegation of specific powers or decisions is
documented in wriling, sclting out the reasons for and scope and limitation of such delegation, supported by
a form of bp group authority. Delegations are monitored and reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.

Application of the system of povernance

The directors have applicd this system of governance by:

"

Promaoting the purpose of the company to reimagine enengy lor people and our planet, with an
ambition to become a net zero company by 2050 or sooner, and to help the waorld gzt Lo nel wera,
Regularly reviewing its Board's composition to ensure thal it has an appropriately diverse balance of
skills, backgrounds, experience and knowledge and ensuring that individual diveclors have sufficient
capacity to make valuable contributions, The Board retaing a minimum of three directors where
appropriate, and where appropriate promotes independent and objective challenge through the
appointment of a minimum of e dircetor who iz not directly or indirectly responsible for the
management function of the company. In certain cases where appropriate, the Board nominates a
designated Chair to provide leadership of the Board during Board meetings,

Underlaking training on a regular basis to ensure that thoy have a clear understanding of their
respansibilities and accountabilitics. To support effective decision-making, dircctors consider the
System of Internal Control, the bp Code of Conduct and the company’s purpose and how it furthers
the bp group's purpose, aims and ambitions, when acting in their capacity as a director of the
Company.

In accordunce with the Policy, the Board is supported by the System ol Internal Conteol to identify
nppartunities to create and preserve value, Refer o the principal risks and uncertaintics in the
strateyic reporl.

Having regard to and fostering good stakeholder relationships, Refer to the statement of engagement
with key stakeholders in the directors” report for further information.

Anditors

Pursuant to scclion 487 of the Companies Act 2006, Deloitte 1.1.P have expressed their willingness to
continue in office as auditors and are therefore deemed reappointed as auditors,
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Directors® statement as to the disclosure of information to the auditor

The directors who were members of the board at the time of approving the directors’ report are listed on
page |, Having made enquiries of fellow directors and of the company’s auditor, each of these directors
confirms that:

*  To the best of each director’s kmowledge and belief, there is no information relevant to the preparation of
the auditor's report of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and

+  Each director has taken all the steps a director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of
relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information,

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with section 418 of the Companies Act
20006,

Authorized for issue on behalf of the Board

karun Madonman.

K Maclennan
Direclor

September 30, 2022

Registered Office:

| Wellheads Avenue
Dvyee

Aberdeen

ABZI 7PB

United Kingdom
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BRITOIL LIMITED

The direetors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in aceordance
with applicable UK law and regulations,

Company law requires the direetors W prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including
Financial Reporting Standard 101 *Reduced Disclosure Framework'. Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and Tair view of the state of
affairs of the company and the profit or loss for that period. In preparing these financial stalgments, Lhe
directors are required to:

»  select suitable accounting policics and then apply them consistently;
= make judgements and cstimates that ave reasonable and prudent;

= slate whether applicable United Kingdom accounting standards have been followed, subject Lo any
material departures disclosed and explained in the linancial statements; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records thal are sulTicient o show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the Fnancial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
They are also regponsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and henee for laking reasonahble steps
for the prevention and detection of frawd and other irregularities,

The dircetors conlirm that they have complied with these requirements. Details of the directors' asscssment
of going concern are provided in the directors’ report,
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EPE T 'S

TO THE MEN ITED
Repuort on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In pur ppimion the financial statements of Britoil Limited (the company):
= give a true and fair view of the slale of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit for the vear
then ended;
= havc been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™; and
*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the [inaneial statements which comprise:
= lhe profil and loss account;
*  the statement of comprehensive income;
*  lhe balance sheet;
*  the stalemént of changes in equity; and
*  lhe related notes | to 26.

The linancial reporting framework thal has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, in¢luding Financial Reporling Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framewark” (United Kingdom
Generally Accepled Accounting Practice),

Basis lor vpinion

We conducied our audit in accerdance with Tnierational Standards on Auditing (UK) (I5As (UKD and applicable law, Our
responsibilities under those standards are [urlber deseribed in the auditor’s responsibilities for the awdit of the financial
statements seclion of our reparl,

We arc independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our mudil of the Gnancial
slalements in the UK, including (he Financial Reporting Council’s {lhe *FRC's") Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the direetors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the Anancial stelements is approprate,

Our evaluation of the dircclors’ ssscssment of the company®s ability o continue Lo adopt the going concern basis of
accouniing included:
= An assessment of whether material uncertainlics existed that could cast significant doubt an the entite’s abilily 1o
conlinue as a going concern for least 12 months after the date of appeaval of the linancial slalements;
= An assessment of the funds that can be made available to the company throngh bp group treasury channels;
*  Anassessmenl of the management's identified potential mitigating actions and the approprialencss of the inclusion
of these in the going concern assessment;
+ An assessment of he disclosures made within the lnancial slalemenls;

Gased on the work we have performed, we have not identilied any material unceriainlies relaling o events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company s ability lo continue as a going concern for a period of
al least twelve months lrom when the Onancial slalements are authorised lor issue,

QOur responsibilities and the responsibilitics of the directors with respect o going concern are deseribed in the relevant
seclions of this report.

Other information

The ether information comprises the inlformation included in the annual report, ather than the financial stalements and our
auditor’s report (hereon, The directors are responsible for the other inlormation contsined within the annual report, Our
opinion an the financial statements does nol cover the other information and, except 1o the extent otherwise explicilly stated in
our report, we do nol express any [orm of assurance conclusion therean,

Our responsibility is 1o read the olher information and, in doing so, consider whether the olher information is materially
inconsistent with the lnancial slatements or our knowledge obtained in the audil, or otherwise appears lo be materially
misslated. 17 we identify such material inconsistencics or apparent material misstatements, we arc required to determine

. T
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INDETE ! I 'S ORT

whether this gives rise to a material misslalement in e lnancial statements themselves, 10 based an the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is 8 maleris]l misslalement ol this other inlarmation, we are required 1o report thal Fael.

W have nothing to report in this regand,

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more Tully in the statement of dircctors® responsibilitics, the diveetors are respensible [or the preparalion of the
financial statements and for being satisficd that they give a frue and fair view, and for such inlernal control os the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statcments that are free from material misstatement, whether du
to fraud or ervar.

In preparing the financial statements, the divectors s responsible [or assessing the company s ability lo conlinue as 4 gaing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, malters relaled Lo going coneern and using lhe going concern basis ol acecounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative bub Lo do so,

Auditor's responsibilities for the andit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the lnsancial stalements as 8 whole are [ree [rom material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror, and o issue an audilor’s reporl thal ineludes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordanes with T8As (TR will slways duelect a
material misstaternent when it cxists. Misstatements can arise Tom feud or error and sre considered material i, individoally
ol in the apgregate, they could reasonably be expected to influcnee the coonomic decisions of wsers laken on the basis ol These
financial statements.

A farther description of our respensibilities for the audit of the financial statements is localed on the TRC™s websile al
www. ficorg ukianditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of owr auditor’s reporl.

kixtent to which the andit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

lercgularitics, including fraud, are instances of non-complisnce with laws and regulations, We design procedures in line with
anr respansibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respeet of iregularities, including fravd, The extenl lo
which our procedures arc capable of delecting irregularities, including frand s dedailed below.

W comsidered The nature of the company™s industey and its conlrol environment, and reviewed the company's decumentation
ol their policies andd progedures relating to Teaed and compliance with laws and repulations. We also enquircd of management,
about their own identification and assessment of the risks of regolaritics,

We oblained sn understanding of the legal and regulalory Dameworks thal the company operates in, and identified the key
lavey and regulations thats
+  had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and diselosures in the lnancial stalerments. These
included the TTE Companics Act and relevanl 1ax legislation; and
do nel have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be Dindamental o the
company s sbilily Lo operate or o ayvoid @ material penalty.

We discussel smong the awdit engagement team regarling the opportenities and incentives that may cxist within the
arganisation for frand and how and where fraud might cceur in the fnancial stalements,

In common with all audies under 15A5 (UK, we are alse required to perform specific prosedures lo respond G the risk ol
management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of conlrols, we leshsl the approprialeness
ol journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making aveounting eslimales are indicslive
el a potential biag; and evaluabed the business ralionale of any significant transactions that arc wnusual or cutside the normal
course ol usiness.

In addition to the abeve, our procedures to respond te the risks identificd included the lollowing:

«  reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporling documeniation o assess compliance with
provisions ol relevanl laws and regulalions described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

«  performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpecled relationships that may indicate risks of
malerial mrisslatement due Lo aud;

*  enquiring of msnagemenl, and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and petential litigation and claims, and
instances ol non-compliznce with laws and regulations; and

v peading minetes of mectings of those charged wilh govermanee,

DN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on gther matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audil;
» the information given in the steategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statcments are prepared is consistent with the finaneial statements; and
= the strategic reporl and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified any material misstalemenis in the sirategic report or the directors' report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required o report in respect of the {allowing matters if], in owr opinion:
+  adequate aceounting records have not been kept, or retumns adequate for our audit bave not been received [rom
branches not visited by us; or
+  the financial statements arc not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
+  geriain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters,

Use of our report

This reporl is made solely to lhe company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006, Cur audil work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those mallers we are
required to state o them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose, To the [ullest extenl permitted by low, we do nol
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, [or our aedil wark,
for this report, or for the apinions we have formed.

ﬂi“m[ [ Kq;\u‘ han

Mikhail Raikhman, CaA
(Senior statulory mudilor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

September 30, 2022

DY
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D LOSS ACCOUN

FOR TH ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BRITOIL LIMITELD

2021 2020
MNuote 000 OO0
Turnover 3 1,502,591 445 459
Cost of sales (R78,432) (924,313}
Gross profil / (loss) 624,459 (478,854)
Dividend income — 60,000
Exploration expenses (2} ol
Disiribution costs (14} {1501
Administralive cxpenses (1,874 {4.908)
Other operating income 3 28,908 i, 091
Profit / (loss) on disposal of fixed asscts 4 10,293 {17,847)
Impairment of tmgible asscls 12 s {324,4606)
Reversal ol impairment of tangible assets 1z - 3,374 —
Impairment of Mxed asset investments i3 (9,953) (533,837
Operating profit / (loss) ; 4 655,191 (755,911)
Interest receivable and simmbar meome [ 2,805 16
Interest payable and similar expenses 7 (22.681) {(30,716)
Profil { {loss) before taxation 635,405 (786,459)
Tax on profit / {loss) 0 (20,924 419,004
Profit / (loss) for Lhe year 430,481 {367,455)

The profit of $430,481 thousand for the vear ended 31 December 2021 was derived in its entirety from
continping operations,

DI
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STATEMENT

ENSIVE INCOME

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BRITOIL LIMITE

2021 2020
$000 000
Profit / (loss) for the year 430,481 (367.455)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedging that will subsequently be translerred to the balance sheet 221) (338)
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax (221) (538)
Total comprehensive income for the year 430,260  (367,993)

. DN
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AS AT 31 DECT

BRITOIL LIMITED
{Registered Mo SCOTT750)

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assels
Investments

Current assets
Stocks
Debtors  amounis falling due:

within ome year

aller vne year
Derivatives and other financial instruments:

within one year

Cash al bank andd in hand

Creditors; amounts falling due within one year

Derivatives and other financial instruments due within one year
Lease liabilities

MNet currenl assets

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creditors: wmounts falling due after more than one yeur

Derivatives and other Mnancial instruments due after more than one
YHT

Lease linbilities

Provisions for lizbililies and charges
Delerred tax linbility
Other provisions

MET ASSETS

23

LR 2021

Mole
11
12
13

14

15
15

19

16
19
17

16
19

20

2021 2020

$000 S000
896,531 896,478
2,494,056 2,874,091
364,412 374,365
3,754,990 4,144,934
27,995 30,107
1,585,003 1,495,258
1,151,291 204,976
- 88

5 5

(383,169)  (295.913)

(4,581)

(658) (12,905)
2,380,557 1.417,035
6,135,556 5,561,969

(88) (9,176)

- (20,348)

(1,350) (2,558)
{421,635) (216.711)

(1,209,134)  (1,062,087)
4503349 451,089

DN
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BALANCE SHEET
2021 2020
Note 000 HO00
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 21 2,389,808 2,359,808
Share premium account 22 133,109 133,109
Cash Now hedge reserve 22 — 221
Profit and loss account 22 1,980,342 1,727.861
TOTAL EQUITY 4,503,349 4,251,089
_———— el

Authorized for issue on behalf of the Board

karun Madonman.

K MMaclennan
Director

September 30, 2022

)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BRITOIL LIMITED
Called up Share Cashflow DProfit and
shure  premium hedge loss
capital account reserve account
(Mote 21} (Note 227 (Mote 22)  (MNote 22 Total
000 S000 000 000 HO00
Balance at 1 January 2020 2,389 893 133,109 759 2095316 4619082
Lass for the financial year == — —  (367455)  (367,455)
(ther comprehensive income [or the year — — (538) (538)
Taotal eomprehensive income for the year P ozt (538) (367455) (367,993
Balance at 31 December 2020 2,389,508 133,109 221 1,727.861 4,251,089
Profit for the financial year — A = 430,481 430,481
Other comprehensive income for the year — — (221) — (221)
Twtal comprehensive income for the year — — (221 430,481 430,260
Dividends paid — (178,000)  (178,000)
Balance at 31 December 2021 2,389,898 133,109 1,980,342 4,503,349

)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BRITOIL LIMITED

Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101)

The financial statements af Britoil Limited for the year ended 31 December 2021 were approved by the
board of directors on  30/09/2022 and the balance sheel was signed on the board’s behalf by K
Maclennan, Britoil Limited is a private company, limited by shares incorporated, domiciled and registered in
scotland (registered number SCO77750). The company's registered office is at | Wellheads Avenue, Dyce,
Aberdeen, AB21 7PB. These [inancial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework' (FRS 101) and the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

The company has used a true and fair view override in respect of the non-amortization of goodwill (see Note
2),

Significant accounting policies, judgements, estimates and assumptions

The significant accounting policies and critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions of the
company are set out below,

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101, The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of certain financial
instruments. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
the assets.

The accounting policies that follow have been consistently applied to all years presented, excepl where
oltherwise indicated.

These financial statements are separate financial statements, The company has taken advantage of the
exemption under s400 of the Companies Act 2006 not to prepare consolidated financial stalements, because
it is included in the group financial statements of BP p.lc. Details of the parent in whose consolidated
linancial statements the company is included are shown in Note 26 to the financial statements.

The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 “Application of Financial Reporting
Requirements’ issued by the FRC, Accordingly, these financial statements were prepared under the historical
cosl cenvention in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework and
the Companies Act 2006. As permilted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure
exemplions available under that standard in relation to:

fa) the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 388, 380, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D, 111 and
134 to 136 of LIAS | Presentation of Financial Statements;
(b} the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements to present
comparative information in respect of:
(i) paragraph 79a)(iv) of IAS 1;
(i1} paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
(i)  paragraph 74 A(b) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
{iv) paragraph 118(e) of [AS 38 Inlangible Assets;
(c) the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;
(d} the requircments of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS § Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors in relation to standards not yvet effective;
(e} the requirements of paragraph 17 and 18A of TAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;
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(f) the requirements of [AS 24 Eelated Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered
into between two or more members ol & group, provided thal any subsidiary which 13 a party to the
transaction iz wholly owned by such a member;

(g} the requirements ol paragraphs 130000, 1300010, 134(d) to 134(1) and [35(c)-135(e) of TAS 36,
Impairment of Assets;

{h) the requirements of [FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

(i) the requirements of paragraphs 91 — 99 of [FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;

(j) the requirement of the second sentence of pavagraph 110 and pavagraphs 1130a), 114, 115, 118,
L19{a) to (), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

(k) The requiremnents of paragraph 52, the second sentence of paragraph 89, and paragraphs 90, 91 and
93 of I'KS 16 Leases;

() The requirements of paragraph 538 of IFRS 16 Leases, provided that the disclosure of details of
indebtedness required by paragraph 61(1) of Schedule 1 to the Regulations is presented separately
for lease liabilities and other liabilities, and in total.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the group tinancial statements of BP p.le. The group
financial statements of BP p.le. are available w the public and can be obtained as set out in Note 26,

The financial statements are presented in US dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars (3000}, except where otherwise indicated,

Significant accounting policies: use of judgements, eslimates and assumptions

Inherent in the application of many of the accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements is
the need for management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affeet the reporled amounts of
assels and labilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period, Actual outcomeas could
differ from the estimates and assumptions used. The accounting judgements and estimates that have a
siymificant impact on the resulty of the company are sel outl within the boxed text below, and should be read
in conjunction with the information provided in the Notes to the financial statements,

The areas requiring the most significant judgement and estimation in the preparation of the financial
statements are; exploration and appraisal intangible asscls; the recoverability of asset carrying values,
including the estimation of reserves; and decommissioning provisions.

Judgrements and estimates; not all of which are significant, made in assessing the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, and climate change and the energy transition on the financial stalemenls are also sel oul in baxed
lexl below, Where an cstimate bas a signifcant risk of requlting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year this s specifically noted within the boxed text

Judgements and cstimates made in assessing the impact of climate change and the energy transition
Climate change, the energy transition, bp's strategy to 2030 and ambition to become a net-zero company by
2050 or sooner were considercd in preparing the linancial statements. These issues may also have
significant impacts on the currently reported amounts of the company's asscls and liabilities discussed
below as well as similar assats and liabilities that may be recognized in the [uure, bp's assurmplions Tor
investment appraisal help ereate an investment decigion making  framework for currently unsanctioned
future capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment, and intangibles including exploration and
appraisal assets, that is designed to support the effective and resilient implementation of bp's strategy. The
oil and gas price assumptions used for investment appraisal are producer prices and are therefore net of any
carbon prices that the market price may include. bp's oil and gas price assumptions for value-in-use
impairment testing are aligned with those investment appraisal assumptions, except Tor the assumplions for
future carbon emission costs described below,
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Impairment of properly, plant and equipment, and goodwill
The energy transition is likely to impact the future prices of commodities such as oil and natural gas which
in tum may affect the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, and goodwill in the oil and gas
industry, bp’s best estimate oil price assumptions for value-in-use impairment testing were revised during
2021. The assumption up to 2030 was increased Lo reflect near-term supply constraints whereas the long-
term assumption was decreased as bp's management expects an acceleration of the pace of transition to a
lower carbon economy. Henry Hub gas price assumptions remain unchanged from 2020 except that the
assumption for 2022 has been increased to reflect short term market conditions. The revised assumptions sit
within the range of external forecasts considered by management and are in line with a range of transition
paths consistent with the goal of the Paris climate change agreement of limiting global warming to well
below 2°C as well as the ambition to limit global warming to no greater than 1.5°C. See significant
judgements and estimates: recoverability of asset carrying values for further information including
sensitivity analysis in relation to reasonably possible changes in the price assumptions.

In order to incentivise engineering solutions to mitigate carbon emissions on projects, the group’s
investment apprmsal process includes a single carbon emissions price assumption for the investment
economics which is applicd to bp scope 1 and 2 emission forecasts where they exceed defined thresholds,
and is assumed to be payable by bp as the producer. However, for value-in-use impairment testing on hp’s
existing cash generating units (CGUs), consistent with all other relevant cash flows estimated, bp is
required to reflect management's best estimale of any expected applicable carbon emission costs payable by
bp in the future for each jurisdiction in which the group has interests, This requires management’s best
estimate of how future changes to relevant carbon emission cost policies and/or legislation are likely to
affect the future cash fows of the group’s applicable CGUs, whether currently enacted or not. Future
potential carbon pricing and/or costs of carbon emissions allowances are included in the value-in-use
calculations to the extent management has sufficient information to make such an estimate. Currently this
results in limited application of carbon price assumptions in value-in-use impairment tesls given that
carbon pricing legislation in most jurisdictions where the group has interests is not in place and there is not
sufficient information available as to the relevant policy makers' future intentions regarding carbon pricing
lo support an estimate.

lmmirments were recognized during 2021 on certain upstream oil and gas properties as a result of the long-
term price assumptions. Impairment reversals were recognized on certain other upstream oil and gas
properties as a result of the higher near-term assumptions. See Note 4 for further information.

Management will continue Lo review price assumptions as the energy transition pr opresses and this may
result in impairment charges or reversals in the future.

Exploration and appraisal intangible assets

The energy transition may affect the future development or viability of exploration prospects. A significant
proportion of exploration and appraisal intangible assets were written off in 2020 as a result of lower price
assumptions and work to develop bp’s new strategy. The recoverability of the remaining intangibles was
considered during 2021 and no significant write-offs were identified, These assets will continue to be
assessed as the energy (ransition progresses. See significant judgement: exploration and appraisal
intangible assets and Note 8 for further information.

Property, plant and equipment — depreciation and expected useful lives
The energy transition may curtail the expected useful lives of oil and gas industry assets thereby
accelerating depreciation charges. However, the significant majority of bp's existing upstream oil and
natural gas properties are likely to be fully depreciated within the next 10 years and, as outlined in bp's
strategy, oil and natural gas production will remain an important part of bp’s business activities aver that
period. Similarly, for refineries, demand for refined products is expected to remain strong over the
remaining useful life of existing assets. Therefore, management does not expect the uscful lives of the
company’s teported property, plant and equipment to change and do not consider this to be a significant
accounting judgement or estimate. The useful lives of future capital expenditure may, however, be
different. See significant accounting policy: property, plant and equipment for more information.
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Provisipns: decommissioning

The energy ransition may bring forward the decommissioning of oil and gas industry asscis thereby
mcreasing the present value of associated decommissioning provisions. The majority of bp's existing
upstream oil and gas properties are expected to start decommissioning within the next two decades and bp's
expeclation 1o reduce hydrocarbon production by 40% by 2030 through active management and high-
grading of the portfolio, has not currently materially brooght forward the expecled timing of
decommissioning expenditures for the upstream assets in bp's portfolio. Management does nol expect any
reasonable change in the expected liming of decommissioning to have a material effect on the upstream
decommissicning provisions, assuming cash Mows remain unchanged. Decommissioning cost estimates are
based oo the known regulatory and external environment. These cost estimates may change in the future,
including as a result of the transition to a lower carbon economy. Management will continue to review facts
andl circumstances to assess il decommissioning provisions need to be recognized. See significant
judgements and estimates: provisions for further information.

Judgemenis and estimates made in assessing the fmpact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the economic
environment
In preparing the financial statements, the following areas involving judgement and estimates were
identified as most relevant with regards to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and current economic
CnvIrmIment,

(roing concern

Forecast liquidity has been assessed under a number of stressed scenarios, including a significant decline in
oil prices over the 12-month period. Reverse stress tests performed indicated that the group will continue to
operate as a going concern for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements cven il the Brent price fell to zero. No material uncertainties over going concern or significant
judgements or estimates in the assessment were identificd. Sce also Note X Financial instruments and
finameial risk factors — Liguidity risk for further information.

Discount vate assumptions

The discount rates used for impairment testing and provisions were reassessed during the year o light of
changing economic and geopolitical outlooks. The nominal discount rate applied to provisions was
reduced during the year to reflect the enduring reduction in US 'I'reasury yields, The principal impact of
this mate reduction at group level was a $1.3 billion increase in the decommissioning provision with a
cotresponding increase in the carrying amount of property, plant and equiptment of $1.0 billion. Impairment
discount rates and country risk premiums were unchanged from those reported in 2020, See significant
judgements and estimates: recoverability of asset carrying values and provisions lor further information.

Oil and natural gas price gysumptiony
The price assumplions for Brent oil up to 2030 and Tlenry TTub gas for 2022 used in value-in-usc
impairment fesling were revised upwards during the year, in part due to near-term supply constraints and
short term market conditions. Impairment reversals were recognized on certain upstream oil and pas
properties as a consequence of these price assumptions changes. See significant judgements and estimates;
recoverability of asset carrying values for further information,

Income faxes

The carrying amounts of the group’s deferred tax assets were reviewed and updated to the extent that there
are changes in the probabilily of sulTicient taxable profits being available to utilize the reported deferred Lax
assets. Management does not consider the measurement of deferred tax assets to be a significant accounting
estimale, See significant accounting policy: income taxes and Mote 9 Tor further information.

Kignilicant accounting policies
Going coneern

The direclors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements. The current ceconomic and peopolitical environment, as well as the ongoing impact of
COVID 19 were considered as part of the going concemn assessment,

Liguidity and financing is managed within the bp group under pooled group-wide arrangements which
include the company. As part of the going concern basis of preparation for the company, the ability and
intent of the bp group to support the company has also been taken into consideration. The most recent bp
group financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis. Forecast liquidity of the bp
proup has been assessed under a number of stressed scenarios, including a significant decline in oil prices
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over the 12-month period from the date these financial statements were approved. Reverse stress tests
performed indicated that the bp group will continue to operate as a going concern for at least 12 months from
the date of approval of the financial statements even if the Brent price fell to zero. In addition, bp group
management have conlirmed the existing intra-group funding and liquidity arrangements as currently
constituted are expected to be maintained for the foreseeable future, being no less than twelve months from
the approval of these financial statements. No material uncertainties over going conecrn or significant
judgements or estimates on the assessment were identified. Accordingly, the company will be able to draw
on support from the bp group for the foreseeable future and these financial statements have therefore been
prepared on a going concern basis. For further information on Anancial risk factors, including credit risk and
liquidity risk, sec pages 5-6.

As noted in the Strategic Report, the company holds interests in a number of producing fields in the UK
continental shelf, as a result the company’s cash flows are impacted by changes in the commodity price.
There is no significant exploration or development spend planned on those ficlds during the going concern
peried. The company does not hold cash directly and funding requirements are met through the central
Treasury organisation, as a result the company is reliant on the overall group funding to continue in
operation and meet itg liabilities as they fall due in the going concern period. The total debit balance of the
internal finance accounts (IFA) in the company as at 31 December 2021 is $439,214,000 funded by BP
International Limited. The company has only intercompany trading within the bp group and also has ne
assets position of 54,503,349.000 and net current assets of $2,380,557,000.

In assessing the prospects of Britoil Limited, the directors noted that such assessment is subject to a degree
of uncertainty that can be expected to increase looking out over time and, accordingly, that future outcomes
cannet be gnaranteed or predicted with certanty,

Having a reasonable expectation lhal the company has adeguale resources to continue in operational
existence for at least the next 12 months from the date these financial stalements were approved, the
directors consider it appropriate to continue Lo adopl the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements,

Foreign currency

The tunctional and presentation currency of the financial statements is US dollars. The functional currency is
the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency
in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the rate of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Where this is not practical and exchange rates do not fuctuate
materially the average rate has been used. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated into the functional currency at the spot exchange on the balance sheet date. Any resulting
exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account, unless hedge accounting is applied. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities, other than those measured at fair value, are not retranslated subsequent 1o
initial recognition.

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are held at cost. The company assesses investments for an
impairment indicator annually. [T any such indication of possible impairment exists, the company makes an
estimate of the investment’s recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an investment exceeds its
recoverable amount, the investment is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Where these circumstances have reversed, the impairment previously made is reversed to the extent of the
ariginal cost of the investment,

All other fixed asset investments are stated in the financial statements at cost less provisions for impairment,
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Tnteresis in joini arrangements

A joinl arrangement 15 an amrangement in which two or more parties have joint contrel, Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the ammgement have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous congent of
the parties sharing control.

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joiot control of the armmangement have
rights to the assels, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. The company recognizes,
on a line-by-line basis, its share of the assets, Habilities and expenses of these joinl operations incurred
jointly with the other partners, along with the company’s income from the sale of its share of the cutput and
any habilities and expenses that the company has incurred in relation to the joint eperation.

Business combinations and goodwill

The Companies Act 2006 requires goodwill to be reduced by provisions for amortization on 4 systematic
bazis over a period chosen by the diveetors, itg useful economic life. However, under ITRE 3 Business
Combinations poodwill is not amortized. Consequently, the company does not amortize goodwill, bul
reviews il for impairment on an annoal basig or whenever there are indicators of impairment. The company
is therefore invoking a ‘true and fair view override’ to overcome the requirement for the amortizalion of
goodwill in the Companies Act 2006, The company iz not able to reliably estimate the impact on the
financial statements of the true and fair override on the basis that the uselul ceonomic life ol goodwill cannot
be predicted with a satisfactory level of reliability, nor can the pattern in which goodwill diminishes be
known,

A buginess combination is a trangaction or other event in which an acquirer obtains contrel of cne or more
businesses, A business is an integrated set of activitics and asscls that s capable of being conducted and
managed for the purpose of providing a return in the form of dividends or lower costs or other economic
benefits directly to investors or other owners or participants, A buginess consists ol inpuls and processes
applicd to those inputs that have the ability 1o create outputs.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are measured at their Tair values al the acquigition date. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
tranglored by the acquirer, the habilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquirees and the
equity interests issued by the acquirer., Acquisition costs incwted are expensed and included in
adminislralive expenses.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the agerepate of the consideration transterred and the
acquisition-date fair values of any previously held inferest in the acquirce over the fir value ol the
iclentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

At the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, expected to benefit from the combination’s synergies.

Following imilial reeommition, poodwill 15 measured al cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumslanees
indicate the recoverable amount of the cash-gencrating unit 1o which the goodwill relates should be assessed.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amounl, an impairment
loss is recognized,
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Goodwill may also arise upon acquisition of interests in joint operations thal meet the definition of a
business. The amount of goodwill separately recognized is the excess of the consideration transferred over
the company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities.

Significant judgements and estimates: impairment of investments

Determination as to whether, and how much, an investment is impaired involves management estimates on
highly uncertain matters such as the effects of inflation and deflation on operating expenses, discount rates,
production profiles, reserves and resources, and future commodity prices, including the outlook for global
or regional market supply-and-demand condilions for crude oil, natural gas and refined products.

For value in use calculations, future cash flows are adjusted for risks specific to the cash-generating unit
and are discounted using 4 pre-tax discount rate. The pre-tax discount rate is based upon the cost of funding
the group derived from an established model, adjusted to a pre-tax basis. Fair valuc less costs of disposal

calculations use the post-tax discount rate. The discount rates applied in impairment tests are reassessed
each year,

See 'Significant judgements and estimates: recoverability of asset carrying values' below for details of
assumptions used.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, other thun goodwill, are stated at the amount initially recognized, less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

For information on accounting for expenditures on the exploration for and evaluation of oil and natural gas
resources, see the accounting policy for oil and natural gas exploration, appraisal and development
expenditure below,

Intangible assets are carried initially at cost unless acquired as part of a business combination. Any such
asset is measured at fair value at the date of the business combination and is recognized separately from
goadwill if the asset is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights.

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortized on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives,

The expected useful lives of assets and the amortization method are reviewed on an annual basis and, if
necessary, changes In useful lives or the amortization method are accounted for prospectively.

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Ol and natural gas exploration and appraisal expenditure

(il and natural gas exploration and appraisal expenditure is accounted for using the principles of the
successful efforts method of accounting as described below,
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Licence and praperfy acquisition costs

Cxploration licence and leasehold property acquisition costs are initially capitalized within intangible asscls
and are reviewed at each reportimg date o conficm that there is no indication that the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount. This review includes conlirming that explovation drilling is still under way
or firmly planned or that it has been determined, or work is under way to determine, that the discovery is
economically viable based on a range of lechnical and commercial considerations and sufficient progress is
being made on establishing development plans and tming. I no Tuture activity is plammed, the remaining
balanee of the licenee and property acquisition eosts is written off. Lower value licences are pooled and
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated period of exploration. Upon internal approval for
development and recognition of proved reserves of oil and natural gas, the relevant expenditure is translerred
to tangible assets.

Explovation and appraisal expenditure

Geological and geophysical exploration costs are charged (o the profit and loss account as incurred. Costs
directly associated with an exploration well are capitalized as an intangible asset until the drilling of the well
is complete and the results have been evaluated. These costs include employee remuneration, materials and
fuel used, rig costs and payments made to contractors. 1f potentially commercial guantitics of hydrocarbans
are not found, the exploration well costs are written off. If hydrocarbons are found and, subject to further
appraisal activity, are likely to be capable of commercial development, the costs continue to be carried as an
agsel. 170 is determined that development will not occur then the costs are expensed.

Costs divectly associated with appraisal activity undertaken to determine the size, characteristics and
commercial potential of a reservoir following the initial discovery of hydrocarbons, including the costs of
appraizal wells where hydrocarbons were not found, are initially capitalized as an intangible asset, Upon
nternal approval Tor development and recognition of proved reserves, the relevant expenditure is transferred
to tangible assets.

The determination of whether potentially cconomic oil and natural gas reserves have been discovered by an
exploration well is usually made within one year of well completion, but can take longer, depending on the
complexity of the geological structure. Exploration wells that discover potentially economic quantities of oil
and natural gas and are in areas where major capital expenciture {c.g. an offshore platform or a pipeling)
would be required belore production could begin, and where the economic viability of that major capital
expenditure depends on the successful completion of turther exploration or appraisal work in the area,
remain capitalized on the balance sheet as long as such wor is under way or firmly planned.

Sipnificani judgement: exploration and appraisal intangible assets

Tidgement iz required to determine whether it is approprisie (o conlinue Lo carry cosld associated with
exploration wells and exploratory type stratigraphic test wells on the balance sheel. This includes costs
relating 1o exploration licences or leasehold property acquisitions. [t is nol unusual o have such costs
remaining suspended on the balance sheet for several years while additional appraisal drilling and scismic
worl on the potential il and natural gas feld is performed or while the optimum development plans and
timing are established. The costs are carricd based on the current regulatory and political environment or any
known changes to that envitonment, All such carried costs are subject to regular technical, commercial and
management review on at least an anoual basis to confirm the continued intent to develop, or otherwise
extract value trom, the discovery, Where this is no longer the case, Lhe costs are immediately expensed.

As a resull of the revised price assumptions detailed in Significant judgements and estimates: recoverability
of asset carrying values below and a review of bp's long-term strategic plan, management reviewed the
company s exploration prospects and the carrying value of the associated intangible assets. The outcome of
the review resulted in revised judgements over management's expectations to extract value from certain
prospects, thereby leading to material write-offs of the sssociated exploration and appraisal intangible assets
in 2020,

The carrying amount of capitalized costs and further information on the write-offs are included in Note 8.

h



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D07AC30-D5B8-4ECF-B961-D726D88C8231

Tangible assets

Tangible asscts owned by the company are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset into the location and condition necessary Tor it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if
applicable, and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to gel ready for their intended
use, directly-attributable finance costs. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount paid
and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset,

Exchanges of assets are measured at fair value unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance
or the fair value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up is reliably measurable. The cost of the
acquired asset is measured at the fair value of the asset given up, unless the fair value of the asset received is
more clearly evident. Where lair value is not used, the cost of the acquired asset is measured at the carrying
amount of the asset given up. The gain or loss on derecognition of the assel given up is recognized in profit
or loss,

Expenditure on major maintenance refits or repairs comprises the cost of replacement assets or parts of
assets, inspection costs and overhaul costs. Where an asset or part of an asset that was separately depreciated
is replaced and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
company, the expenditure is capitalized and the carrying amount of the replaced asset is derecognized.
[nspection cosls associated with major maintenance programmes are capitalized and amaortized over the
period to the next inspection. Owverhaul costs for major maintenance programmes, and all other maintenance
costs are expensed as incurred.

Expendilure on the construction, installation and completion of infrastructure facilities such as platforms,
pipelines and the drilling of development wells, including service and unsuccessful development or
delineation wells, is cuapilalized within property, plant and equipment and is depreciated from the
commencement of production.

Oil and natural gas properties, including related pipelines, are depreciated using a umil-of-production
methoed. The cost of producing wells is amaortized over proved developed reserves. Licence acquisition,
common facilities and future decommissioning costs are amortized over total proved reserves. The unit-of-
production rate for the depreciation of common facilities takes into account expenditures incurred to date,
together with estimated future capital expenditure expected to be incurred relating 1o as yet undeveloped
reserves expected to be processed through these common Facilities.

Tangible assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives. The typical useful
lives of the company”s tangible assets are as follows:

Fixtures and fittings 5 to 15 years

The expected uselul lives and depreciation method of tangible assets are reviewed on an annual basis and, il
necessary, changes in useful lives or the depreciation method are accounted for prospectively.

The carrying amounts of tangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

An item of tangible assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
1o arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derceognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
profit and loss account in the period in which the item is derecognized.

N
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NOTESTOTHE F ! UNTS
Impairment of intangible and tangible assets

The company assesses assets or groups of assets, called cash-generating units (CGUSs) for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverahle, lor example, changes in the company’s business plans, plans to dispose rather than retain assets,
changes in commodity prices, evidence of physical damage or, Tor oil and gas assets, significant downward
revisions of estimated reserves or increazes in estimated future development expenditure or
decommissioning costs, [T any such mdication of impairment exists, the company makes an estimate of the
asset's recoverable amount. Individual assets are grouped for impaitment assessment purposes at the lowest
level at which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups
of assets, An asset group’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. I it iz probable that the value of the CGU will primarily be recovered through a disposal transaction, the
expected disposal proceeds are considered in determining the recoverable amount. Where the carrying
amount of an asset group exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset group is considered impaired and is
writlen down Lo iLs recoverable amount.

The business segment plans, which are approved on an annual basis by senior management, are the primary
source of information for the determination of value in use. They contain forecasts for ofl and natural gas
production, revenues, costs and capital expenditure, Carbon taxes and costs of emissions allowances are also
included in cstimates of Tuture cash Mows, based on the regulatory environment in each jurisdiction in which
the group operates. As an initial step in the preparation of these plans, various assumplions regarding markel
comditions, such as il prices, natural gas prices, refining marging, refined product margins and cost inflation
rates are set by senior management, These assumptions take account ol cxisting prices, global supply-
demand cquilibrivm for oil and natural gas, other macroeconcmic factors and histerical trends and
variability.In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Nows arc adjusted for the risks specific to the
asset group that are not reflected in the discount rate and are discounted to their present value typically using
a pric-lax discount rate that refleets curent market assessments of the time value of money.

Fair value less costs to sell iz identified as the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly

amsaction between market participants and does not rellect the elTeets of factors that may be specific to the
entity and not applicable to entities in general. Tn limited circumstances where recent market transactions arc
not available for reference, discounted cash flow techniques arce applicd, Where discounted cash Mow
analyscs are used to caleulate fair value less costs of disposal, estimates are made about the assumptions
market participants would use when pricing the asset, CGU or group of CGLUs containing goodwill and the
test is performed on a post-tax basis.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairmont losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. [F such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only il there has been a change in
the estimaies used to determine the assel's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized, If that is the case, the carrying amount of the gssel is inereased o its recoverable amount. That
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognived in profit or
loss, ANer such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised
canving amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over ils remaining useful life,

Goodwill 15 reviewed [or impatmment anoually or more Frequently iF events or changes in circumstances
indicate the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates should be assessed. In
assessing whether goodwill has been impaired, the carnrying amount of the group of CGUs 10 which goodwill
has been allocated is compared witl its recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs is less than the carrying amount (including goodwill), an impairment loss is recognized. An
impairmenl loss recognized for goodwill is nol reversed in a subsequent period,

O
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Significant judgements and estimates: reco vemb:.’:ry af asser mrr_}’mg values

Determination as to whether, and how much, an asset, CGl U, or group of CGUs containing gm}dwﬂl is
impaired involves management estimates on highly uncertain matters such as the effects of inflation and
deflation on operating expenses, discount rates, capital expenditure, carbon pricing (where applicable),
production profiles, reserves and resources, and future commodity prices, including the outlook for global or
regional market supply-and-demand conditions for crude oil, natural gas and refined products. Judgement is
required when determining the appropriate grouping of assets into a CGU or the appropriate grouping of
CGUs for impairment testing purposes. For example, individual oil and gas properties may form separate
CGUs whilst certain oil and gas properties with shared infrastructure may be grouped together to form a
single CGU. Alternative groupings of assets or CGUs may resull in a different outcome from impairment
Lesiing,

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal.
Fair value less costs of disposal may be determined based on expected sales proceeds or similar recent market
transaction data,

Details of impairment charges and reversals recogmized in the profit and loss account are provided in Note 4
and details of the carrying amounts of assets are shown in Note 11 and Note 12,

The estimates for assumptions made in impairment tests in 2021 relating to discount rates and oil and gas
properties are discussed below. Changes in the economic environment including as a result of the energy
transition or other facts and circumstances may necessitate revisions to these assumptions and could result in
4 material change to the carrying values of the company's assets within the next financial year.

Discount rates

For discounted cash Now caleulations, future cash flows are adjusted for risks specific o the CGU, Value-in-
use calculations are typically discounted using a pre-tax discount rate based upon the cost of funding the bp
group derived from an established model, adjusted to a pre-tax basis and incorporating a market participant
capital structure and country risk premiums. Fair value less costs of disposal calculations use the post-lax
discount rate,

The discount rates applied in impairment tests are reassessed each year and in 2021 the post-tax discount rate
used was 6% (2020 6%). Where the CGU is located in a country that was judged to be higher risk an
additional premium of 1% to 3% was reflected in the discount rate (2020 1% to 3%). The Judzcment of
classifying a country as higher risk and the applicable premium takes into account various economic and
geopolitical factors. The pre-tax discount rate typically ranged from 7% to 15% (2020 7% to 15%) depending
on the applicable tax rate in the geographic location of the CGU,

i
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Ol and natural gax properiies

For oil wnd natural gas propertics cxpected future cash flows are estimated using manapement’s best estimate
of future oil and natural gas prices, and production and certain resources volumes, The estimated future level
of production is based on assumptions about future commodity prices, production and development costs,
field decline rates, current fiscal regimes and other factors,

In 2021, the company identified il and gas properties with carrying amounts totalling $4 million (2020 $936
million) where the headroom, as at the dates of the last impairment test performed on those assets, was less
than or equal to 20% of the carrying value, A change in the discount rate, reserves, resources or the oil and
gas price assumptions in the next financial year may result in a recoverable amount of one or more of these
assets above or below the current carrying amount and therefore there is a significant risk of impairment
reveraals or charges in that period,

The recoverability of intangible exploration and appraisal expenditure is covered under Oil and natural gag
exploration, appraisal and development expenditure above.

mformation on the carrying amounls of the company’s oil and natural gas properties, together with the
amounts recoghized as depreciation, depletion and amortization is conlained in Note 12,

(Xl and natural gas prices

The price assurmplions used for value in use impairment testing are based on those used for investment
appraisal, bp’s carhon emissions cost assumptions and their interrelationship with oil and gas prices are
described in Tudgements and estimates made in assessing the impact of climate change and the transition to a
lower carbon economy’ on page 27, The investment appraisal price assumptions are recommended by the bp
group senior vice president economic & energy insights alter congidering a range of external price, and
supply and demand forecasts under various energy transition scenarios. They are teviewed and approved by
management, Ag a resull of the cwrrent uncertainty over the pace of transition to lower-carbon supply and
demand and the social, political and envirommental actions that will be taken to meet the goals of the Paris
climate change agreement, the forecasts and scenarios considered include those where those goals are met as
well ag thoze where they are not met.

During the year, bp's price assumptions applied in value in use impaimment festing for Brent oil up to 2030
were inereased Lo reflect near-term supply constraints. bp's management also expects an acceleration of the
pace of transition to a lower carbon economyy. As such, the long-term Brent oil assumptions were decreased
during the vear, reaching $55 per barrel by 2040 and $45 per bamel by 2050 (in 2020 real terms). The price
agsumptions applicd in value in use impairment test for Tlenry TTub gas were unchanged to those used in
2020 except that the assumption for 2022 was inereased Lo reflect short term market condition.

Mese price assumptions are derived from the central case investment appraisal assumplions. A summary of
the group’s revised price assumptions applied in 2021 and 2020, in real 2020 terms, is provided below, The
assumptions represent management’s best estimate of Mature prices, which sit within the range of external
forecasts considered as appropriate for the purpose, They are considered by bp to be in line with a range of
transition paths consistent with the Paris climate goal of limiting global warming o well below 2°C as well
s the ambition to limil global warming 1o no greater than 1.5°C. An inflation rate of 2% (2020 2%) is
applied to determing the price assumptions in nominal terms,

2021 price assumptions 2022 2025 2030 2040 2050
Brant oil {$/bb1) 70 4] 60 ] 45
Henry Hub gas ($/mmbiiu) 4 3 3 3 213
2020 price assumplions : 2021 2025 2030 . 2040 2050
Brent oil ($/bbl) 50 SM) ail 60 50
Henry Tub gas ($/mmBtu) 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.75

37



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D07AC30-D5B8-4ECF-B961-D726D88C8231

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The majority of bp’s reserves and resources that support the carrying value of the group’s existing oil and
gas properlies are expected to be produced over the next 10 years.

The oil market continued its rebalancing process in 2021. Qil prices averaged $70/bbl in 2021. That is 70%
higher than in 2020 and the second highest since 2015. Oil demand rebounded on the back of the economic
recovery, supported by the increasing COVID-19 vaccination roll-out and gradual lifting of restrictions. On
the supply side, continued active supply management by OPEC+ countries also helped accelerate the
rebalancing process. bp's long-term assumption for oil prices is lower than the 2021 price average, based on
the judgement that, in the long term, oil demand is likely to fall so that the price levels needed to encourage
sufficient investment 1o meet declining global oil demand is also lower.

US gas prices almost doubled in 2021 to $3.9/'mmbtu from $2.0/mmbtu in 2020. The higher prices reflect a
much tighter demand/supply balance for 2021 when compared to 2020. Early in the year, colder weather
increased demand and decreased supply resulting in a large draw on storage and thercfore the need to
replenish it over the summer. Strong global GDP recovery also saw a recovery in LNG exports from the
US relative to the shut-ins in 2020. Further, higher coal prices also supported gas prices through
competition in the power sector. The level of US gas prices in 2021 is above bp’s long term price
assumption based on the judgement of the price level required to incentivize new production,

Oil and natural gas reserves

In addition to oil and natural gas prices, significant technical and commercial assessmenis are required to
determine the group’s estimaled oil and natural gas reserves. Reserves estimates are regularly reviewed and
updated. Factors such as the availability of geological and engineering data, reservoir performance data,
acquisition and divestment activity and drilling of new wells all impact on the determination of the
company's estimates ol its oil and natural gas reserves. bp bases its reserves estimates on the requirement
of reasonable certainty with rigorous technical and comimercial assessments based on conventional industry
practice and regulatory requirements.

Reserves assumptions for value-in-use tests reflect the reserves and resources that management currently
intend to develop. The recoverable amount of il and gas properties is determined using a combination of
inputs including reserves, resources and production volumes. Risk factors may be applied to reserves and
resources which do not meet the criteria to be treated as proved.
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Sensitivity analyses

Management considers discount rates, oil and natural gas prices and production 1o be the key sources of
estimation uncertainty in determining the recoverable amount of upstream oil and gas assets. The
sensitivily analyses in addition to covering the key sources of estimation uncertainty, also indicate how the
energy transition, potential luture carbon emissions costs and/or reduced demand for oil and gas may
further impact forecast revenue cash inflows to a greater extent than currently anticipated in the group’s
value-in-use estimates for oil and gas CGUs, if carbon emissions cosls were o be implemented as a
deduction against revenue cash fMows. The analyses therefore represents a net revenue sensitivily,

A change in net revenue from upstream oil and gas properties can arise either due to changes in oil and
natural gas prices, carbon emissions costs/carbon prices, changes in oil and natural gas production, or a
combination of these.

Management tested the impact of a change in revenue cash flows in value-in-use impairment testing arising
from changes in price assumptions and/or production volumes up Lo a combined effect on revenue of 1094,
however they concluded no impairment charges/reversals would be recognized.

‘These sensitivity analyses do not, however, represent management’s best estimate of any impairment
charges or reversals that might be recognized as they do not fully incorporate consequential changes that
may arise, such as changes in costs and business plans and phasing of development. For example, costs
across the industry are more likely o decrease as oil and natural gas prices fall. The analyses also assume
the impact of increases m carbon price are fully absorbed as a decrease in net revenue (and vice versa)
rather than reflecting how carbon prices or other carbon emissions costs may ultimately be incorporated by
the market. The above sensitivity analyses therefore also do not reflect a lincar relationship between net
revenue and value that can be extrapolated. The interdependency of these inputs and risk factors plus the
diverse characteristics of our upstream o1l and gas properties limits the practicability of estimating the
probability or exient o which the overall recoverable amounl is impacted by changes to the price
assumptions or production volumes.

Management also tested the impact of a one percentage point change in the discount rate used for value-in-
use impairment testing of Upstream oil and gas properties, however they concluded no impairment charges/
reversals would be recognized,

Croocwill

Trrespective of whether there is any indication of impainment, the company is required to test annually for
impairment of goodwill acquired in business combinations. In testing goodwill for impairment, the company
uses a similar approach to that deseribed above for asset impairmoent, [T there are low oil or natural gas prices
or refining marging or marketing margins for an extenided period or the long-term price outlook weakens, the
company may necd Lo reeognize goodwill impairment charges.

Stocks

Stocks, other than stocks held for truding purposes, are stated at the lower of cost and nel realizable value.
Cost is determined by the first-in first-out method and comprises direct purchase costs, cost of production,
trangportation and manufaciuring cxpenses. Net realizable value is based on cstimated selling price less any
further costs expected to be ncurred to complelion and disposal. Net realizable value is determined by
reference to prices existing at the balance sheet date, adjusted where the sale of inventories afier the
reporting periad gives evidence about their net realizable value at the end of the peried.

Supplies are valued at the lower of cost on a weighted average basis and net realizable value.
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Leases

Agreements that convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration are accounted for as leases. The right to control is conveyed if bp has both the right to abtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from, and the right to direct the use of, the identified asset
throughout the period of use. An asset is identified if it is explicitly or implicitly specified by the agreement
and any substitution rights held by the lessor over the asset are not considered substantive.

Agreements that convey the right to control the use of an intangible asset including rights to explore for or
use hydrocarbons are not accounted for as leases. See significant accounting policy: intangible asscts,

A lease liability is recognized on the balance sheet on the lease commencement date at the present value of
future lease payments over the lease term. The discount rate applied is the rate implicit in the lease if readily
determinable, otherwise an inecremental borrowing rate is used. The incremental borrowing rate is
determined based on lactors such as the group’s cost of borrowing, lessee legal entity credil risk, currency
and lease term. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease together with any periods covered by
an extension option that bp is reasonably certain to exercise, or periods covered by a termination option that
bp is reasonably certain not to exercise. The future lease payments mcluded in the present value calculation
are any fixed payments, payments that vary depending on an index or rate, payments due for the reasonably
certain exercise of options and expected residual value guarantee payments.

Payments that vary based on factors other than an index or a rate such as usage, sales volumes or revenues
are not included in the present value calculation and are recognized in the income statement. The lease
liability i3 Tecognized on an amortized cost basis with inlerest expense recognized in the income statement
over the lease term,

The right-of-use asset is recognized on the balance sheet as property, plant and eguipment at a value
equivalent to the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives,
initial direet costs and any restoration obligations. The right-of-use asset is deprecialed typically on a
siraighl-line basis, over the lease term. The depreciation charge is recognized in the income statement. Right-
of-use assets are assessed for impairment in line with the accounting policy for impairment of property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, and goodwill.

Agreements may include both lease and non-lease components. Payments for lease and non-lease
components are allocated on a relative stand-alone selling price basis,

If the lease term at commencement of the agreement is less than 12 months, a lease liability and right-of-use
assel are not recognized, and a lease expense is recognized in the income statement an a straight-line basis.

If a sigmificant event or change in circumstances, within the control of bp, arises that affects the reasonably
certain lease term or there are changes to the lease payments, the present value of the lease liability is
remeasured using the revised term and payments, with the right-of use asset adjusted by an equivalent
amount.

Modifications to a lease agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are accounted for as a re-
measurement of the lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Any gain or loss
on modification is recognized in the income statement. Modifications that inerease the scope of the lease ata
price commensurate with the stand-alone selling price are accounted for as a separate new lease.

The company recognizes the full lease liability, rather than its working interest share, for leases entered into
on behalf of a joint aperation if the company has the primary responsibility for making the lease payments.
In such cases, the company’s working interest share of the right-of-usc asset is recognized if it is jointly
controlled by the company and the other joint operators, and a receivable is recognized for the share of the
assel transferred to the other joint operators. If the company is a non-operator, a payable to the operator is
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recognized if they have the primary responsihility for making the lease payments and the company has joint
control over the right-of-use asset, otherwise no balances are recognized.

Financial assets

Finaneial assets are recogmized midally at fair value, normally being the transaction price. In the case of
tinancial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, direetly atlributable tansaction costy are also
included. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification, as set out below.,
The company derecoymizes fnameial assets when the contractual rights to the cash Mows expire or the rights
to receive cash flows have been transferred to a third party along with cither substantially all of the risks and
rewards or control of the assel. This includes the derecognition of receivables for which discounting
arrangements are entered into.

The company classifies its financial assels as measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss.
The classification depends on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
Mow characteristics of the Mnancial asset.

Financial asseis measured at amoriized cost

Finanecial assets are classified as measured at amortized cost when they are held in a business model the
objective of which is to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and mterest. Such assels are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method if the time value of money is significant. Gains and losses ave recognized in profit or loss when the
assels are derccogmized or impaired and when interest i3 recognized using the effective intérest method.
This category of financial assets includes trade and other receivables.

Financial asvefs measured af foir value through profic or foss

Financial assats are classified as measured at tair value through profit or loss when the asset does not meet
the criteria to be measurcdd al amortized cost, Such asseis are carried on the balance sheet at fair value with
gains or losses recognized in the profit and loss account. Derivatives, other than those designated as clfective
hedging msiruments, are included in this category.

Derivatives designaied as hedging instruments in an effective hedge

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge are carried on the balance sheel at fair
vilue, The treatment of gaing and losses arizsing from revaluation is described below in the accounting policy
for derivative financial instruments und hedging activities,

Cash eguivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash, are subject Lo msignificant risk of changes in value and generally have a maturity of three months or
less from the date of acquisition. Cash equivalents are classified as Tinancial assels measured al amortized
cost or, in the case of certain money markel funds, fair value through profit or loss.

Impairmenti of linancial assets measured at amortized cost

The company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with financial assets
classified as measured at amortized cost at each balance sheel date, Hxpecled credit losses are measured
bused on the maximum contractual period over which the company is exposed to credit risk. Ay lifetime
expected credit losses are recognized for rade receivables and the tenor of substantially all other in-scope
financial assets is less than 12 months there is no significant ditference between the measurement of 12-
month and lifetime expected credit losses for the company. “The measurement of expected credit losses is a
function of the probability of default, loss given default and exposure al default. The expected credit Toss is
estimated as the difference belween the assel's carrying amount and the present value of the future cash
flows the company expects to receive, discounted at the financial asset's original elfective interest rate, The
carrying amount of the assct 15 adjusted, with the amount of the impairment gain or loss recognized in the
profit and loss account. :
N
|
]
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A financial assel or group of financial assets classified as measured at amortized cost is considered to be
credit-impaired if there is reasonable and supportable evidence that one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset {or group of financial assets)
have occurred. Financial assets are written off where the company has no reasonable expectation of
recovering amaunts due,

Financial linbilitics
The measurement of financial Habilitics is as follows:

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial labilities that meet the definition of held for trading are classified as measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Such liabilities are carried on the balance sheet at fair value with gains or losses
recognized in the profit and loss account. Derivatives, other than those designated as effective hedging
mstruments, are included in this category,

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge are carried on the balance sheet at fair
value. The treatment of gains and losses arising from revaluation is described below in the accounting policy
for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

All other financial liabilities are initially recognized al fair value, net of directly auributable transaction
costs, For interest-bearing loans and borrowings this is typically equivalent o the Fair value of the proceeds
received net of issue costs associated with the borrawing,

After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
elfective interest method. This category of financial liabilities includes trade and other payables and finance
debt.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The company is exempt [rom the disclosure requirements of 1FRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures™
and IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” as the company is included in the consolidated financial statements
of the ultimate parent undertaking, BP p.l.c., which include the disclosures on a group basis that comply with
these standards. Relevant disclosures as required by the Companies Act 2006 in relation to instruments held
at fair value have been included in these financial statements,

The company uses derivative financial instruments to manage certain exposures to fuctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates. These derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fhir value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative,

Far the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

* Fair value hedges when hedging exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability.

+ Cash flow hedges when hedging exposure 10 variability in cash flows that is either atiributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

Hedge relationships are formally designated and documented at inception, together with the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of
the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, the existence at
inception of an economic relationship and subsequent measurement of the hedging instrument’s
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable

N
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lo the hedged risk, the hedge ratio and sources of hedge ineffectiveness, Hedges meeting the criteria for
hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is reported in other
comprehensive meome, while the ineffective portion is recognized in profit or loss. Amounts reported in
other comprehensive income are teclassificd w the profit and loss accounl when the hedged ransaction
affects the profit or loss,

Where the hedged item is a highly probable forecast transaction that Tesulls in the recognition ol a non-
financizl assei or liability, such as a forecast foreign currency transaction for the purchase of tangible assets,
the amounts recognized within other comprehensive income are transferred to the initial carrying amount of
the non-financial assel or liabilicy.

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued only when the hedyzing relationship or a part thereof ceases to
moeel the qualilying criteria. This includes when the designated hedged forecast transaction or part thereof is
no longer considered to be highly probable w occur, or when the hedging instrument is gold, lerminated or
exercised without replacement or rollover. When cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, amounts
previously recognized within other comprehensive income remain in equity until the forecast transaction
ocours and are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to the mitial carrying amount of a non-finaneial
assel or liability as above. IT the forecast transaction 12 no longer expected to ocour, amounts previously
recognized within other comprehensive income will be immediately reclassified to profit or loss,

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be reccived (o sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction betwean market participants. The company categorizes assets and liabilitics measured at fair
value mlo one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement.
Level | inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assels or labilitics, Level 2 inputs are inpuls
that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within level | for the asset
or liability, Level 3 inputs are unocbscrvable inpuls for the assel or liability reflecting significant
modifications Lo ohaervable related market data or bp's asswmptions about pricing by marleet participants.

Offsetting of financial assets and linbilities

Financial assets and lHabilities are presenied gross in the balance sheet unless both of the following criteria
are met the company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts, snd the
company intends Lo either gettle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability sinmltaneously. If
both of the criteria are met, the amounts are set oft and presented net, A right of sel ofT is the company's
legal right o seitle an amount payable to a creditor by applying against it an amount receivable from the
same counterparty. The relevant legal jurisdiction and laws applicable o the relationships between the
partics arc considered when assessing whether a curvent legally enforceable right to set off exists,

Provisions and contingent liabilitics

Prowvisions ave recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ceonomic benefits will be required to settle
the ohligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where appropriate, the
future cash Mow estimates arc adjusted Lo relleet the risks specific Lo the liability.

If the effeet of the Wme value of money i3 malerial, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax risk-free rate that reflects current markel assessments of the lime value of
maney, Where discounting is used, the inerease in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized in
the profit and loss account, Provisions are discounted vsing a nominal discount rate of 2.0% (2020 2.5%).
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Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not
wholly within the control of the company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent liabilities are not recognized i the financial statements but are disclosed, if material, unless the
possibility of an outflow of economic resources is considered remate,

Decommissioning

Liabilities for decommissioning costs are recognized when the company has an obligation to plug and
abandon a well, dismantle and remove a facility or an item of plant and o restore the site on which it is
located, and when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made. Where an obligation exists for a new
facility or item of plant, such as oil and natural gas production or transportation facilities, this liability will
be recognized on construction or installation. Similarly, where obligation exists for a well, this liability is
recognized when it is drilled. An obligation for decommissioning may also erystallise during the period of
operation of a well, facility or item of plant through a change in legislation or through a decision to terminate
operations; an obligation may also arise in cases where an asset has been sold but the subsequent owner is no
longer able to fulfil its decommissioning obligations, for example due to bankruptey. The amount recognized
is the present value of the estimated future expenditure determined in accordance with the local conditions
and requirements. The provision for the costs of decommissioning wells, production facilities and pipelines
at the end of their economic lives is estimated using existing technology, at future prices, depending on the
expected timing of the activily, and discounted using the nominal discount rate,

An amount equivalent o the decommissioning provision is recognized as part of the comresponding
intangible asset {in the case of an exploration or appraisal well) or property, plant and equipment. The
decommissioning portion of the property, plant and equipment is subsequently depreciated at the same rate
as Lhe rest of the asset. Other than the unwinding of discount on or utilisation of the provision, any change in
the present value of the estimated expenditure is reflected as an adjustment to the provision and lhe
corresponding asset where that asset is generating or is expected o generate [uture ceonomic benefits.

Significant judgements and estimates: provisions

The company holds provisions for the future decommissioning of oil and natural gas production facilities and
pipelines at the end of their economic lives. The largest decommissioning obligations facing the company
relate to the plugging and abandonment of wells and the removal and disposal of oil and natural gas platforms
and pipelines. Most of these decommissioning events are many years in the fumre and the precisc
requirements that will have to be met when the removal event occurs are uncertain, Decommissioning
technologies and costs are constantly changing, as well as political, environmental, safety and public
expectations. The timing and amounts of future cash flows are subject to significant uncertainty and
estimation if required in determining the amounts of provisions to be recognized. Any changes in the
expected future costs are reflected in both the provision and the asset.

If oil and natural gas production facilities and pipelines are sold to third parties, judgement 15 required to
assess whether the new owner will be unable to meet their decommissioning obligations, whether the
company would then be responsible for decommissioning, and if so the extent of that responsibility. The
company has assessed that no significant provisions should be recognized as at 31 December 2021 (2020 no
significant provisions) for assets sold to third parties where the sale transferred the decommissioning
obligation to the new owner.
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The timing and amount of future expenditures relating to decommissioning and environmental liabilities are
reviewed annually, together with the rate used in discounting the cash flows, The mlerest rale used o
determine the balance sheet obligations at the end of 2021 was a nominal rate of 2.0% (2020 2.53%), which
was based om long-dated US government bonds. The weighted average period over which decommissioning
is generally expected to be incurred is estimated to be approximately 8 years (2020 8 years). Cosls at (ulure
prices are determived by applying an inflation rate of 1.5% (2020 1.5%) to decommissioning costs and 2%
(2020 2%) for all other provisions. A lower rale is typically applied o decommissioning as cettain costs are
expected to remain fixed at current or past prices.

The estimated phasing ol undiscounted cash flows in real terms for the upstream decommissioning is
approximately $1,086 million (2020 $951 million) within the next 10 years, $179 million (2020 $184
million) in 10 to 20 years and the remainder of approximately $82 million {2020 $82 million) after 20 years,
The timing and amount of decommissioning cash flows are inherently uncertain and therefore the phasing is
management’s current best estimate but may not be what will ultimately occur. '

Further information about the company’s provisions is provided in Note 20, Changes in assumptions in
relation fo the company's provisions could result in a material change in their carrying amounts within the
next financial yvear. A (0.5 percentage point change in the nominal discount rate could have an impacl of
approximately $44 million (2020 $42 million) on the value of the company's pravisions,

The discounting impact on the company's decommissioning provisions [or oil and gas propertics in the oil
productions & operations and gas & low carbon energy segments of a two-year change in the timing of
expected future decommissioning expenditures is approximately $% million (2020 517 million).
Management currently does nol congider a change of greater than two years to be reasonably possible in the
next financial year.

If all expected future decommissioning expenditures were 10% higher, these decommmissioning provisions
would increase by approxmately $131 million and a pre-tax charge of approximately 565 million would be
recognized.

The bp group is subject o claims and actions for which no provisions have been recognized. The Facts and
circumstances relating lo particular cages are evaluated regularly in determining whether a provision relating
to a specific litigation should be recognized or revised. Accordingly, significant management judgement
relating to provisions and contingent liabilities is required, since the oulcome ol liligation is difficult o
predici.

Taxation
[ncome tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

[ncome tax is recognized in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
in other comprehensive income or dircetly in equity, in which case the related tax is recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit dilTers from net profit as reported in
the profit and loss account because it is determined in accordance with the rules established by the applicable
taxation authorities. [t therefore excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
perinds as well as items that are never taxable or deductible. The company’s lability Tor currenl Lax is
calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on wemporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Delerred tax liabilitics are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except:

*  Where the deferred tax Hability arises on the initial recognition of goodwill,

+  Where the deferred tax liability arises on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaciion that i3 not a business combination, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

i
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accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and, at the time of the transaction, does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

= In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarics and
associates and interests in joint arrangements, where the company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will nat
reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, lo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized. An exception is where the deferred tax asset relates to the deductible temporary difference arising
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and, at the time of the
transaction, does not give rise to equal taxable and deductive temporary differences.

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates and
imterests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable luture and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced Lo the extent
that it is o longer probable or increased to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected Lo apply in the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right 1o sel off current
lax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxahle entitics where
there is an intention to settle the current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilitics simultancously.

Where tax treatments are uncertain, if it is considered probable that a taxation authority will accept the
company's proposed tax treatment, income laxes are recognized consistent with the company's income lax
filings, If it is not considered probable, the uncertainty is reflected within the carrying amount of the
applicable tax asset or liability using either the most likely amount or an expected value, depending on which
method better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Judgement is required when determining whether a particular tax is an income tax or another type of tax (for
example a production tax), Accounting for deferred tax is applicd o income taxes as described above, but is
not applied to other types of taxes; rather such taxes are recognized in the profit and loss account in

accordance with the applicable accounting policy such as Provisions and contingent liabilities.

Petroleum revenue tax

Deferred Petroleum Revenue Tax (PRT) assets are recognized where PRT reliel on future decommissioning
costs is virtually certain.

I
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Customs dutics and sales taxes

Customs duties and sales taxes that are passed on or charged to customers are excluded from turnover and
expenses. Asszets and liabilitics are recognized net of the amount of customs duties or sales tax except:

*  Customs duties or sales taxes incurred on the purchase of goods and services which are not recoverable
from the taxation authority are recognized as part of the cost of acguisition of the asset,
*  Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of customs duty or sales tax included.

The net amounl of sales lax recoverable from, or payable o, the taxation authorly is included within
receivables or payables in the balance sheet,

Turnover

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognived when or as the company satisfics a porformance
obligation by transferring control of a promised good or service to a customer. The transfer of control of oil,
natural gas and natural gas liquids vsually eoincides with title passing 1o the customer and the customer
taking physical possession. The company principally satisfies its performance obligations at & point in time;
the amounts of revenue recognized relating to performance obligations satisfied over time are not significant.

When, or as, a performance obligation is satistied, the company recognizes as revenue the amount of the
transaclion price that is allocated o thal performance oblization, The transaction price i3 the amount of
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled. The transaction price is allocated to the
performance ohligalions in the coniract based on slandalone selling prices of the goods or services promisad,

Contracts for the sale of commodities are typically priced by reference to quoted prices. Revenue from term
commuodity contracts is recognized based on the conbractual pricing provisions for cach delivery, Certain of
these contracts have pricing terms based on prices at a poiat in time after delivery has been made. Revenue
from such conlractls is mitially recognized based on relevant prices at the tme of delivery and subsequently
adjusted as appropriate. All revenue from these contracts, both that recognized at the time of delivery and
that from post-delivery price adjustments, is disclosed as revenue from contracts with customers.

Revenue associated with the sale of oil, natural gas liguids, ligueled natural gas iz included on a net bagis in
FUITTIOVEL,

Taritf income is recognized as the underlying commaodity is shipped through the pipeline network based on
established tariff rates.

Interest income

[nlerest income s recognized ag the inlerest acerues using the cfective interest rate — that ig the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
nel carrying amount of the lnancial assel

Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment is

established,

Research costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred,
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Development costs
Development costs for internally developed intangible assets are expensed as incurred unless all of the
following eriteria are met:

= It is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

=  There is an intention and the ability to complete, and use or sell, the intangible asset.

= It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,

= Adequate technical, financial and other resources o complete the development and (o use or sell the
intangible asset are available.

*  The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Finance costs

Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time o gel ready for their intended wse, are added o
the cost of those asscts until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended vse. All other
finance costs are recognized in the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.

Updates to significant accounting policies

Impact of new International Financial Reporting Standards

bp adopted 'Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase [ — Amendments to IFRS9 'financial instruments',
TFRS 16 'Leases’ and other TFRSs" with effect from | January 2021, There are no other new or amended
standards or interpretations adopted during the year that have a significant impact on the company’s
financial statements.

The adoption of *Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 1 — Amendments to IFRS 2 *Financial

instruments’, IFRS 16 "Leases' and other IFRSs' has had no material impact on the company's financial
staterments,
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Turnover

Sales of goods, which is stated net of value added tax, represents amounts where the performance obligation
of a contract has been met with third parties and group companies. Turnover is realised entirely in the
oil production & operations business.

An analysis of the company’s turnover is as follows:

2021 2020

000 000

Revenue fom conteacts with customers 1,500,241 444 858
Tarill incomea 1,400 1,520

Other operating revenue 1,250 (4,919}
1,502,891 445,459
Other operating income _ 28,508 4,091
Interest receivable and similar income (Note 7) 2,895 L68
1,534,694 449718

The couniry of origin is the UK geographic arca and destination is the UK and MNorth-West Burope
geoaraphic areas,

Revenue from contracts with customers is attributable to one continuing activily, the production and sale of
petroleurn and hydrocarbon products. Revenue is recognised as the performance obligation of delivery Lo the
end buyer is met, being the point risk and reward has transterred in accordance with the sales contract.

The increase of 525 million in other operating income was mainly related o final nsurance paymenls
received for Foinaven field in the sccond half of the year relating to lost production associated with the
fuilure of a compressor in 2019,

For delails of turnover change in comparison to previous year please refer to strategic report.

Operaling profit / { loss)

"Thig is stated after charging / (credifing):

2021 2020
000 000
Net foreigm exchange losses Bl 3,052
Research and development costs expensed 710 004
Depreciation of tangible assets (Mote 12) 521,669 606,837
IDepreciation of right-of-use assels” (Note 12) 1,797 34,974
lmpairment of tangible assels (Note 12) == 291,377
Impainﬁﬂnl ol right-of-use assets” (MNote 12) 26,689
Reversal of impairment of tangible assets (MNote 12) 4,460 —
Reversal of impaitment of right-of-use assets” {7,841} —
Impairment of investments (Mote 13) 0.953 533,837
Cost of stock recognized as an expense” 636 686
(Profil) / loss an disposal of tangible assets (10,293) 17,847

*I'he line indicated is i respect of the application of [IFRS 16.
" Amount i included in Cost of sales.

o
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5. Auditor’s remuneration

2021 2020
$O00 5000
[ees for the audit of the company 66 29

. § —————————— |

Fees paid to the company's auditor, Deloitte LLP and its associates for services other than the statutory audit
of the company are not disclosed in these financial statements since the consolidated financial statements of
Britoil Limited’s ultimate parent, BP p.l.c., are required to disclose non-audit fees on a consolidated basis.

The fees were borne by another group company.

6.  Inmterest receivable and similar income

2021 2020

$000 F000

Interest income from amounts owed by group undertakings 606 L41
Other interest income 212 g
Petroleum Revenue Tax (PRT) 2,077 —
Total interest receivable and similar income 2,805 L68

7.  Interest payable and similar expenses

2021 2020

S000 5000

Interest expense on:

Lease liabilities” 13 BTE
Petraleum Revenue Tax (PRT) —- 6,092
Oher interest expense 166 73
Total interest expense 279 7,043
L-’uwi.nding of discounl on provisions (Note 20) 22,402 23,673
T'ntal interest payable and similar charges 22,681 30,716

*In respect of the application of IFRS 16,

nm
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Exploration for and cvaluation of vil and natural gas resources

The following financial information represents the amounts relating to activity associated with the
exploration for and evaluation of pil and natural gas resources,

For information on significant judgements made in relation to oil and natural gag accounting see Intangible
assets in Nate 2,

2021 2020
F000 000
Haploration and evaluation costs
Exploration expenditure written off (99)
Other exploration costs 959 (512
Exploration expense for the year 9359 (6113
Intangible azsels — exploration and appraisal axpendimrl_sm o - 92, TE3 92,730
Liabilities 79,908 24,001
MNet assets 12,875 68,729
Cash (used m)}from operaling aclivitics 954 (512)
Cagh vsed in myvesting activilies 7 1614

Taxation
The company is a member of a group for the purposes of relief within Part 5, Corporation Tax Act 2010,

The taxation charge! {credit) in the profit and loss account is made up as Tollows:

201 2020
Current tax $000 S000
UK corporation tax on income for the year — —
LIK tax underprovided in prior years - 4270
Total current Lax charged —- 4,270
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary ditferences : 205,073 (<15,703)
Effect of increased  (decreased) tax rate on opening lability — —
Adjustments in prior year lemporary differences { 149) {7,571)
Tolal deferred x charged / {credited) 204,924 (423,274
Tax charged / (credited) on profit 204,924 {419,004}

{a} Reconciliation of the efleclive tax rale

The tax assessed on the loss for the year iz lower {2020: higher) than the standard rate of overseas tax in the
UK of 40% for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020; 408}, The dilTerences are reconciled below:

Ot
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2021 2020
000 $000
Profit / (loss) before taxation 635,405 (786,459
Tax charge / (credit) ) 204,924 (419,004)
Effective Lax rate 32 % 53 %
2021 2020
% Y
Uk statutory corporation tax rate: 40 40
Mon-deductible expenditare / (non-taxable income) | (28)
Dividends not subject to UK tax — 31
Ring Fence Expenditure supplement (1) 6
Investment allowance - 4
Activated investment/Cluster allowance (8) —
Effective tax rate 32 33

Change in corporation lax rate

On 3 March 2021, the UK Government announced an increase in the UK's main corporation tax rate from
19% to 25%, effective from 1 April 2023, On 23 September 2022, the Chancellor of the Exchequer
announced that the planned corporation tax rate change to 25% would no longer be implemented and that the
main rate would remain at 19%. This change has yet to be substantively enacted, Because the enacted rate at
the balance sheet dale was 25% this anmmouncement docs not represent an adjusting event and the company's
deferred tax balances as at 31 December 2021 are still calculated at that higher rate.

The rate change is not expected to have a material impact on the company’s [inancial statements.

The changes above do not apply to profits arising from the company's oil and gas exploration and extraction
operations in the UK and the UK Continental shelf (the Ring Fence trade), where the rate of UK corporation
tax remains 30%, and the supplementary tax charge remains 10%, Deferred tax asscts/liabilities relating to
the Ring Fence trade therefore continue to be provided for at the combined rate of 4(1%.

[t the cancellation of the increase in the main rate of corporation lax had been substantively enacted at the

balance sheet date, there would have been no impact on the company's deferred tax position. This is because
all of the company’s deferred tax balances as at 31 December 2021 relate 1o the Ring Fence trade,

() Provision for deferred tax

The deferred tax included in the profit and loss account and balance sheet is as follows:

Profit and loss account Balance sheet
Deferred tax asset 2021 2020 2021 2020
$000 000 000 5000
Decommissioning and other provisions (59,622) 7.378 486,428 426,803
Tax losses carried forward 479313 (84,418} 162,747 592,060
Other deductible temporary differences {1,751) ~ 1,751 —
Met credit for deferred tax assets 367,940 (77,040} 650,926 Egﬂl 85865

T
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Profit and loss account Balance sheat
Deferred tax liability 2021 2021 2021 220
OO0 RO00 5000 $000
Acceleraled capital allowances (146,326) (325,520)  (L035470)  (L.18L1,793)
Diher laxable temporary differences (16,690) (20,714} (37,0017 (53,781)
Net charge for deferred tax liabilitics ( 163,0 lﬁ! (346,234)  (1.072,561) _ (1,235,576)
Mel delferred tax credit and net deferred tax
liability 204,924 {423,274) (421,635) (216,711)
Analysis of movements during the year
2021
5000
At 1 January 2021 (216,711}
Deferred tax charge in the profit and loss aceount 204,924
AL 31 December 2021 _ (421,635)

lyireciors and employces
{a) Remunecration of directors

The following details relate to the direetors who received remuneration for their qualifying services to the
company and so are in scape for this disclosurs,

The total remuncration for these qualifving direclors for their period of directorship 1o the company
amounted to $157,000 (2020 $171,000). Neane of these directors received non-cash benefits in relation o
gqualilfying services.

Nome of these qualifying directors were members of the defined benefit scclion of the bp Pension Fund al 31
December 2021 (2020 One).

Mone of the qualifying directors exercised share options over BP p.lc. shares during the year (2020 None).

{b) Employee costs

The company had no employees during the yeur {20200 None).

|
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Intangible assets

Caost

At 1 January 2021

Additions

Changes in decommissioning provision
Al 31 December 2021

Amortisation _
At | January 2021
At 31 December 2021

Net book value
Al 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

HE FINANCIAL STAT

Goodwill  Exploration Total
expenditure

3000 5000 $000
203,748 95,799 509,547
— 57 57

— (57 (4)
803,748 95,852 599,600

— {3.069) (3,068

s {3.069) (3,069)
803,748 92,783 896,531
803,748 92,730 896,478

The purchase of 16.5% of Clair field from BP Exploration (PST) Limited in October 2019 resulted in
goodwill in amount of $803,748,000. Goodwil| arose as a resull of the hive-down of 16.5% equity in Clair
field by BP Exploration (P3[) Limiled and has been computed under TFRS 3 as the excess of consideration
transferred over the nel of the acquisition-date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and the labilities

assurmed,
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Tangible assels

Fixiures & Oil & gras Of which
fittings properties Total AUCH
Cost- owned tangible assets 000 5000 5000 F000
At 1 January 2021 12,308 7,177,549 7,189,857 15,293
Additions 45,445 45,445 45 445
Disposals {10,000 {10,000 —
Transfers — — — (30.098)
Changes in decommissioning provision : 106,118 106,118 —
At 31 December 2021 12308 7,319,112 7,331,420 101,60k}
Depreciation - owned tangible assels
At | January 2021 (12,308 (4310137 {4,322.445) {2,779}
Charge for the year — (5321,669) (521,663}
Reversal of tmpairment —_ {4,466) (4,466) 2779
[ Msposaly - 10,000 10,000 =—
At 31 December 2021 {12,308) (4.826,272)  (4.838,580) —
Owned tangible assets - net book value
AL 31 December 2021 — 2,492,840 2,492,840 10,640
Righl-of-use assets - net book value
AL 3T December 2021 _ 1216 1,216 —
Total tangible assels nel book value
At 3] December 2021 — 2,494,056 2,494,030 10,6440
Tolal net book value
AL 31 December 2020 2874001 2,874,091 12,514
Depreciation charge for the year on right-of-
use assets
2021 -— (1,797 {1,797} —
20210 — (34,974 (34,974) —
AL = asgets under construction. Assets under construction are nol depreciated,
Capitalized interest included above is;
Met book
value
Capitalized interest F000
At 31 December 2021 303
At 31 December 2020 1,188

In 2021 the company recognised ATUIC additions in amownt of $45 million due to farther developments in
Clair avea ($36 million), Culsean field (35 million), and Toinaven field ($4 million). Also the company hag
capitalized $30 million of AUC to Oil and Gas properties in Clair arca (539 million), Foinaven field

($7 million) and Culzean field (34 million).

55
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Dwring the year the company has recognized impaimment charges of $179 million relating to oil production
and operations, This principally relates to losses on anticipated portfolio changes. Impairment reversals of
$182 million mainly arose as a result of changes to the group’s oil and gas price assumptions and re-
assessment of reserves,

Management’s best estimate of vil price assumptions for value-in-use impairment testing was revised during
2021, The assumption up to 2030 was increased to reflect near-term supply constraints whereas the long-
term assumption was decreased as bp's management expects an acceleration of the pace of transition 1o a
lower carbon economy. Henry Hub gas price assumptions remain unchanged from 2020 except that the
assumption for 2022 has been increased to reflect short-term market conditions. The revised assumptions sit
within the range of external scenarios considered by management and are in line with a range of transition
paths consistent with the temperature goal of the Paris climate change agreement, of holding the increase in
the global average temperature to well below 2°C above pre-industrial levels and pursuing efforts to limit the
temperature increase to 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels.

The business segment plans, which are approved on an annual bagiz by senior management, are the primary
source of information for the determination of value in use. They contain forecasts for oil and natural gas
production, refinery throughputs, sales volumes for various types of refined products (e.g. gasoling and
lubricants), revenues, costs and capital expenditure. Carbon taxes and costs of emissions allowances are
included in estimates of fulure cush flows, where applicable, based on the regulatory environment in each
jurisdiction in which the group operates. As an initial step in the preparation of these plans, various
assumplions regarding market conditions, such as oil prices, natural gas prices, refining margins, refined
product margins and cost inflation rates are sel by senior management, These assumptions take account of
existing prices, global supply-demand equilibrium for oil and natural gas, other macrocconomic factors and
historical trends and variability. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the
risks specific to the asset group to the extent that they are not already reflected in the discount rale and arc
discounted to their present value typically using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments ol the time value of money.

As the production profile and related cash flows can be estimated tfrom bp's past experience, management
belizves that the cash flows generated over the estimated life of field is the appropriate basis upon which to
assess goodwill and individual assets for impairment in both gas & low carbon energy and oil & production
operations. The estimated date of cessation of production depends on the interaction of a number of
variables, such as the recoverable quantities of hydrocarbons, the production profile of the hydrocarbons, the
cost of the development of the infrastucture necessary to recover the hydrocarbons, production costs, the
contractual duration of the production concession and the selling price of the hydrocarbons produced. As
each field has specific reservoir characteristics and economic circumstances, the cash flows of each field are
computed using appropriate individual economic maodels and key assumptions agreed by bp management.
Estimated production volumes and cash flows up to the date of cessation of production on a field-by-field
basis, including operating and capital expenditure, are derived from the business segment plans. The
production profiles used are consistent with the reserve and resource volumes approved as part of bp’s
centrally controlled process for the estimation of proved and probable reserves and total resources,

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations are oil and natural gas prices, production volumes
and the discount rate. The value-in-use calculations have been prepared solely for the purposes of
determining whether the goodwill balance were impaired. Estimated future cash flows were prepared on the
basis of certain assumptions prevailing at the time of the tests. The actual outcomes may differ from the
assumptions made. For example, reserves and resources estimates and production forecasts are subject to
revision as further technical information becomes available and economic conditions change. Due to
economic developments, regulatory change and emissions reduction activity arising from climate concem
and other factors, future commodity prices and other assumplions may differ from the forecasts used in the
calculations.

These sensitivity analyses do not, however, represent management's best estimate of any impairment
charges or reversals that might be recognized as they do not fully incorporate consequential changes that

il
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may arise, such as changes in costs and business plans and phasing of development. For example, costs
across the industry are more likely to decrease as oil and natural gas prices fall. The analyses also assume the
impact of Mmereases n carbon price on operational GHG emissions are fully absorbed as a decrease in net
revenue (and vice versa) rather than reflecting how carbon prices or other carbon cmissions costs may
ultimately be incorporated by the market. The above sensitivity analyses therefore do not reflect a linear
relationship between net revenue and value that can be extrapolated, The interdependency of these inputs
and factors plus the diverse characteristics of our upstream oil and gas properties limils the practicability of
estimating the probabilily or extent to which the overall recoverable amount is impacted by changes to the
price assumptions or production volumes,

As g result of this review, the company has recognized lotal impairment reversals of $3 million (2020
$324 million charge). These consist of impairment charges of owned tangible assets amounting to 53 million
(2020: $298 million) and impairment reversals of right-of-use assets amounting to $8 million. Impairments
were calculated on a value in use basis, applying a discount rate of 10%. The residual value of the CGU's
which have recognized impairment charges during the vear was $6 million.

Investments

Investiment in

subsidiaries

Cosl 000
Ab 1 Janwary 2020 1,434,000
At 3] December 2020 1,434,000
At 1 Jamoary 2021 1,434 000
At 3| December 2021 1434000
Impairment losses
AL T January 2020 (525,798
Charge for the vear (333,837
At 31 December 2020 (1,059.635)
At 1 January 2021 {1,059,635)
Charyre for the year {9,953)
AL 3] December 2021 (1,0649,588)
MNet book amount
At 31 December 2021 Jo4.412
At 31 December 2024 374,365

The investments in subsidiaries are all stated at cost less provision for impairment.

The company has recognized $9,953,000 of impaimment as a resull of slight decrease of net assets of Amoco
Fiddich Limited as production has been ceased due to the FPSO off-stationing in 2021,

The mvesimenls in the subsidiary undertakings are unlisted.
The subsidiary and other undertakings of the company at 31 December 2021 and the pereentiagze of squity
capital held are set out below. The principal country of operation is generally indicated by the company's

couniry of incorporation or by its name.

All voling rights are equal to percentage of share capital owned unless otherwise noted below,

DT
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Subsidiary undertakings

Company name Class of share %
held

Amoco (UK) Ordinary shares 100
Exploration LLC

Registered address

Coarporation Trust Center,
1209 Orange Street,
Wilmington DE 19801,
Uniled States

Significant holdings in undertakings other than subsidiary undertakings

Principal activity

Lxploration and production
of hydrocarbons

In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, disclosed below is a full list of related
undertakings in which the company holds an interest of 20% or greater not already disclosed above.

Related undertaking Holding %
Amoco UK Petroleum Limited 100

Amaoco (Fiddich) Limited 100

Stocks

Raw materials and consumables
Crude o

The difference between the carrying value of stocks and their replacement cost is not material,

Debtors

Amounts falling due within one vear:

Trade debtors

Amounts owed from parent undertakings
Amounts owed from fellow subsidiaries
Other debtors

Prepayments and acerued meome
Taxation

Petraleumn Revenue Tax

Joint venture lease receivable

Registered address

Direet / Indirect

Chertsey Road, Sunbury on Thames, Indirect
Middlesex, TW16 7BP, United Kingdom
Chertsey Road, Sunbury on Thames, Indirect
Middlesex, TW 16 7BP, United Kingdom
2021 2020
$000 000
16,879 15421
11,116 14,686
27,995 30,107
2021 2020
F000 OO0
105,182 38,351
724,116 959 604
414,312 262277
290,532 180,848
5.033 7,029
46 —
44,866 46,827
106 322
1,585,093 | 495258

58
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Amaoumis [alling due afler one year:

Other debiors
Loans to group undertakings
Petroleum Revenue Tax

Total debtors

2021 2020
S000 $000
58,564 70,523
1,000,000 -
92,727 134,453

204976

1,151,291 ;

2,736,384

1,700,234

The amounts owed from parent undertakings include an Internal Financing Account (IFA) of $43%m (2020
$576m). Interest is accrued on a monthly basis based on LIBOR. The interest rate at year end was 0.01%

(2020: Nil).

The remaining $285m relates of the balance with BPEOC and with BP International 1ST, The remaining
amount owed from parent undertakings, fellow subsidiaries and associates are frading balances with payment
terms of 30 days. Trade and other receivables are predominantly non-interest bearing.

Whilst IFA balances are legally repayvable on demand, in practice they have no termination date.

Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year;

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to parenl undertakings
Arnounts owed to fellow subsidiaries
Other credilory

Taxation

Accruals and deferred income

Bank overdraft

Arnounts Talling due after one year

Other creditors
Total ereditors

2021 2020
$000 $000
39,481 56,333
68,213 2
132,770 122,673
98,341 14,110
. 37,722
44,195 64,764
169 109
383,160 205013
2021 2020
$000 $000

88 9,176

383,257 305,089

Materially all of the company's trade payables have payment terms in the range of 30 to 60 days and give

rise to operaling cash flows.

The payable amounts to parent undertakings, fellow subsidiaries and associates consists ol inlereompany
trade payable balances related to the operation of the company. Intercompany payable balances also have

payment terms in the range of 30 to 60 days, with no interest being charged.
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Obligation under leases
Lease liabilities are analysed as follows:

Within 3 years

2021 2020

5000 ROO0

Mot whaolly repayable 1,383 14,516
1,383 14516

After 5 years

2021 2020

F000 000

Mot wholly repavable 625 947
. 625 947

Lease liabilities due within one year is $658,000 and due aller more than one year is $1,350,000.

Further reduction of liability on Foinaven FPSO lease contract was due to the FPSO removal on Foinaven
field. Lease liability for Maersk drilling rig was settled in amount of $13 million in current year in line with
terms of lease contracts.

Leases
The company leases a number of assels as part of its activities. This primarily includes FPSO (floating,

production, storage, offtake) that will terminate in 3Q 2022, Some leases will have payments that vary with .
market interest or inflation rates,

2021 2020

FO00 E000
Expense for variable payments not included in the lease liability — 267
Additions to right-of-use assets in the period L0850 (2,771)
Total cash cutflow for amounts included in lease liabilities” 430 39028

" The cash outflows for amounts not included in lease liabilities approximate the income statement expense
disclosed above.

An analysis of right-of-use assets and depreciation is provided in Note [2. An analysis of lease interest
expense is provided in Note 7.

Operating lease payments receivable, included within debtors, arc analysed as follows:

2021 2020

_ 000 S000

Year | 106 322
Total L 06 322

T

a0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D07AC30-D5B8-4ECF-B961-D726D88C8231

19,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Derivatives and other financial instroments

In the normal course of business the company enters into derivative financial instruments (derivatives), to
manage its normal business exposures in relation to foreign currency exchange rates consistent with risk

management policies and objeclives.

For information on significant estimates and judgements made in relation 1o the application of hedge
accounting and the valuation of derivatives, see Derivative financial instruments and hedging activilies

within Note 2.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments at 31 December are set out below:

2021 2021 2020 2020
Fair value  Fair value  Fair value  Fair value
asset liability asset liabilily
FO00 HO00 s000 F000
Cash flow hedges
- Currency forwards, Futures and cylinders — £8 -
Chher Mnancial liabilities == — — (24,920
— — 88 (24,929)
O which:
— current derivatives with third partics - (4,581)
- current intercompany derivatives with parent 8 .
undertaking
—nom-current derivatives with third parties = — — (20,348)
— — 88 (24,929
Lesg than
2020 | vear L-2 years 2-3 wears 3-4 yoars Total
000 000 S000 000 000
Fair value of derivative assets
Level 2 #B — — — HE
Tair value of derivative liabililicy
Lewvel 2 — — -
Met fuir value Ba 0 — — 88

61
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Cask flow hedges

AL 31 December 2020, the company held currency forwards designated as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedge relationships of highly probable forecast non-US dollar capital expenditure, There were no forwards
as at 31 December 2021, Note 28 of the bp group Annual Report and Form 20-F for the year ended 31
December 2021 outlines the group’s approach to foreign currency exchange risk management. When the
highly probable forccast capital expenditure designated as a hedged item occurs, a non-financial assct is
recognized and is presented within the fixed asset section of the balance sheet,

The company claims hedge accounting only for the spot value of the currency exposure in line with the
strategy to fix the volatility in the spol exchange rate element, The fair value on the instrument attributable to
forward points is taken immediately to the income statement.

The company applies hedge accounting where there is an economic relationship between the hedged item
and hedging instrument. The existence of an economic relationship is determined at inception and
prospectively by comparing the critical terms of the hedging instument and those of the hedged item, The
company enters into hedging derivatives thal match the currency and notional of the hedged items on a 1;1
hedge ratio basis. The hedge ratio is determined by comparing the notional amount of the derivative with the
notional designated on the forecast transaction, The company determines the extent to which it hedges highly
probable forecast capital expenditures on a project by project basis.

The company has identified the following sources of ineffectiveness, which are not expected to be material:

* counterparty's eredit risk, the company mitigates counlerparly credit risk by entering into derivative
trangactions with high credit quality counterparties; and

+  differences in settlement timing between the derivative and hedged items. The latter impacts the
discount factor used in the caleulation of the hedge inefTectiveness. The company mitipates
differences in timing between the derivatives and hedged items by applying a rolling strategy and by
hedging currency pairs from stable economies (ie. sterling/US dollar, Buro/US dollar). The
company's cash flow hedge designations are highly efTective as the sources of ineffectiveness
ientified are expected to result in minimal hedge ineffectiveness.

The eompany has not designated any net positions as hedged items in cash flow hedges of foreign currency
sk,

All hedping instruments were presented within derivative financial instruments on the company balance
sheet,

Of the nominal amount of hedging mstruments relating to highly probable forecast capital expenditure $4.2
million matured in 2021

The table below summarizes the weighted average exchange mates in relation to the derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in cash flow hedge relationships at 31 Deeember 2020,

Weighted average pricefrate
Forecast Capital Expenditure

At 31 December 2020
GBPUSD 1.34

Movement in reserves related to hedge acconnting
The table below provides a reconciliation of the cash flow hedge and costs of hedging reserves on a pre-tax
basis by risk category. The signage convention of this table is consistent with that presented in this Note

above.
il
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Cash tlow hedge
reserves

Highly probable
forecast capital
expenditure

Asat | Janmary 2021 221
Cash flow hedges transferred to the balance sheet (221)
MAs at 31 December 2021

Another group company, BP International Ltd, has entered into o foreign exchange hedging programme on
behalf of the company. This is 1o manage foreign exchange risk in relation to non US$ highly probable
lorecast capital expenditure on the Culzean projecl. The hedging instrument s an intercompany derivative
berween the company and BP International Lrd.

For cash flow hedges the company only claims hedge accounting on the intrinsic value on the currency, with
any [air value attribuiable Lo forward point taken immediately to the income statement. The amount
recognized in the profit and loss account was a profit of 8132000 (2020: $742,000 profit).

The company completed the sale of s nlerest m the Devenick Reld on 28 June 2003 {cessation of
production is happened at the end of 2021). As part of the terms of this divestment, the company retained the
rights o 0% ol the Tulure cash fows of the asseis, also known as The Devenick Revenue Sharing
Agreement (RSA). The rights have been recognized in these accounts as other Anancial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, The REA 1% Tair valued guarterly using the value in use method applying a 6%
(2020: 6%) discount rate to the future cash flows. In 2021 the profit share element of RSA has been
terminated, thus it is reported under decommissioning obligation as that is all the cash flow left in RSA.

DIT
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20.  Other provisions

Decom-
missioning Total
$000 F000
AL | January 2021 1,062,087 1,062,087
Mew or increased provisions;
Charged to profit and loss account 26,174 126,174
Recognized within tangible and intangible assets 106,114 106,114
Recognized within right-of-use assets (12,062) (12,062)
Unwinding of discount 22,402 22,402
Utilization (25,5381) (95,581)
At 31 December 2021 1,209,134 1,209,134
At 3] December 2021
Current 211,047 211,047
Man-current OG8,087 998,087

1,209,134 1,209,134

At 31 December 2020
Current 125,235 125,235

MNon-current 036,852 930,852
1,062,087 1,062 087

For information on significant judgements and estimates made in relation o provisions, see Provisions
within Note 2.

21,  Called up share capital

2021 2020
$000 fooo

[ssued and fully paid:

16,756,628,766 ordinary shares of 10p each for a total nominal value of

£1,675,662,876.6 (2019: 16,736,628,766 ordinary shares of 10p each for a

total nominal value of £1.675,662,876.6) 2,389 208 2,380,808
2,389,898 2,389,808

il
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Reserves

Called up share capital
The balance on the called up share capital account represents the aggregate nominal value of all ordinary
sharcs in issue,

Share premivm qocount
The balance on the share premium account represents the amounts received in excess of the nominal value of
the ordinary shares.

Cash fTow hedae reserve

The cash flow hedge reserve records the portion of the gain or loss on a hedging instrument in a cash flow
hedge that i3 determined to be an clfeetive hedge. For further information on the accounting for cash flow
hedges sce Note 2 - Derivative financial instruments and hedging activitics.

Prafit and foss aceownt
The balance held on this reserve is the retained profits of the company.

In 2021, the company paid interim ordinary dividends of $178,000,000 (2020 §0). The dividend per share
wits B0.01 (2020 $0.000.

Capital commitments

Authorized and contracted future capital expenditure (excluding righl-of-usc assets) by the company for
which contracts had been placed bul nol provided in the financial statements at 31 December 2021 is
estimated al $12,459, 000 (2020: £19,350,000).

Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage ol the cxemplion confained within paragraphs 8(k) and (j) of TRS 101,
andd has not disclosed transactions entered inte with wholly-owned group companies or key management
personnel. There were no other related party ansactions in the vear.

Post balanee sheet event

Un 14 December 2021 bp announced its intention Lo acquire Rockrose's 28% shares in Foinaven and 47%
share in Last Foinaven ficlds, The deal was completed on 1 April 2022 and as a result bp increased its share
o 100% in Foinaven and 90% in Bast Toinaven felds. Since the transaction arose only subsequent to 31

December 2021, it will be rellected i the financial statements of Britoil Limited for the year ending 31
December 2022,

Immediale and ullimate controlling parent undertaking

The immediate parent undertaking is BP Gxploration Operating Company Limited, a company registered in
England and Wales. The ultimate controlling pareni undertaking is BP plec, a company registered in
England and Wales, which is the parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group to consolidate these
financial statements. Copies of the consolidated linancial statements of BP ple, can be obtamed from its
registered address: 1 51 James™s Square, London, SWI1Y 4PD.,

il
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